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SECTION 1 - QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS




REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL No. HSS-11-098
Assertive Community Treatment and Intensive Case Management Services
Pre-Bid Meeting Audience Questions

January 17, 2012

1. Do we need to have participation in Minority or Women Qwned Business?
No

2. Would everything have to be in house if we can’t have subcontractors?
No other entity allowed.

3. Can we negotiate services in the community?
This is fine as long as they do not violate question #2,

4. If the person has no entitlements and they can’t afford the co-pay will there be a
sliding fee scale?
“Co-pays” will not be charged for uninsured clients utilizing the state pharmacy -
not sure of the intent of the question. “Co-pays™ usually relates to insurance
coverages.

5. When you say Medicaid does that also include Medicare Part D?
Yes

6. What about Medicare Part D? The fee can’t be waived,
With reference to the State pharmacy, Medicare Part D co-pays will also be
charged in accordance with established procedures.

7. 1f they can’t afford it, who is making that judgment? They can say everyone can’t
afford it and use the state pharmacy. How are they making that determination?
As stated at the pre-bid, clients with Medicaid benefits will have their choice of
pharmacy services. Clients who are uninsured will be directed to the state
pharmacy until they become eligible for benefits or for as long as they need. Co-
payments cannot be paid by DSAMH going forward and co-pays will also be
collected in the state pharmacy in accordance with established procedures,

8. What do you mean by sliding fee scale?
Please refer to DHSS Policy Memorandum #37 — the ability to pay contains a
sliding fee scale




10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15,

16.

17.

18.

I’m confused, money DSAMH used to pay for co-pays is no longer available to
CCCPs?

As stated at the pre-bid, clients with Medicaid benefits will have their choice of
pharmacy services. Clients who are uninsured will be directed to the state
pharmacy until they become eligible for benefits or for as long as they need. Co-
payments cannot be paid by DSAMH going forward and co-pays will also be
collected in the state pharmacy in accordance with established procedures.

What pharmacy do they use?
Not sure of the question.

Would you reimburse sliding scale co-pay?
No

There is other money tied to CCCP contracts not addressed in the RFP. Will they
be broken out as other contracts (supported housing, supported employment)?
DSAMH will be working with each of the existing CCCP contracted vendors to
address these issues. The funding will continue to exist for these purposes (i.e.
housing and employment).

What about housing, group home, housing vouchers?

ACT/ICM clients are eligible for the same housing resources available to current
CCCP clients, i.e. any that the individual is eligible for such as group homes,
SRAP, HUD resources, etc.

Will the ACT/ICM members be able to access the CCCP housing resources, i.e.
the 17 group homes, 9 supervised apartments, co-occurring residential treatment
program? Yes.

Will the 650 housing subsidy vouchers mentioned in the DOJ settlement be made
available? Yes, although the number of vouchers available for the ACT/ICM
clients will vary by year and by overall demand for these vouchers.

Referring to the bottom of page 39, do you mean client assistance funds or flex
funds?
Please disregard, correction will be posted

You don’t want to see flex funds or any client assistance funds as part of the
budget?
Correct, this has been deleted from the RFP.

Will client assistance money still be available?
Yes, we are in the process of determining the amount, allowable use and access
procedures.




19.

20.

21.

22

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Where is the addendum to the REP located for people not at the pre-bid meeting?
All changes will be posted on the website.

Do you have a plan in place for who would be responsible for fidelity plan,
certification plan and monitoring?

The Quality Assurance and Performance Improvement team will be in charge of
creating and monitoring program Certification and ongoing monitoring to ensure
fidelity to the model

What can you provide about the reimbursement model?

We are currently working with a national consultant firm with extensive
experience in designing ACT/ICM rate-setting methodologies. More information
will be provided when it is determined which model we will be adopting.

What will the mode] be?

See #21

What portion of the population will be Medicaid vs. Medicare Part B?
This information is currently not available

How do you expect to bill for it?
See #21

Do you think you will have it before the close of the RF P?
Yes, DSAMH is hopeful that we will be able to provide the primary component
and model of the methodology.

Are you trying to move away from clinics?
No, the clinic system will remain in place. Individuals will be assigned a level of
care based on their need and preference.

Are you looking at already made clinics or are you looking at individual providers
with teams?
We are looking for Fidelity based teams.

Could you clarify the relationship of these programs to CRISP and what you
mean by incorporating CRISP elements?
Please disregard the CRISP reference — a correction will be posted

Do you really see these as independent programs?
Yes.

Would you accept telemedicine? Theoretically, we would accept it; however,
DSAMH will need to fully understand the rationale for the use of Tele-Medicine
and how it will fit into the team structure.




31. Can we use telemedicine for the psychiatrist services p. 13?7 Yes, see #30.

32. What about nurse practitioners? Do you allow them?
NP can be used, under supervision of a psychiatrist.

33. Billing model, telemedicine—are you bundling it?
We do not anticipate a bundled rate.

34.Is it OK to utilize the services of an APN instead of a psychiatrist for these
services?
Yes, this is acceptable. See #35.

35. Will a waiver be needed?
The Certification Standard will state: Fsychiatric Prescriber: A psychiatric
prescriber may include:
7.1.1.1 A person with a Medical Degree or Doctor of Osteopathy
degree, licensed to practice medicine in Delaware and who
has completed (or is enrolled in) an accredited residency
training program in psychiatry, internal medicine or family
practice,
7.1.1.2 A psychiatric nurse practitioner in psychiatric-mental health
nursing who is licensed to practice medicine in Delaware or
participates in the Nurse Licensure Compact (NLC.)

7.1.2  The psychiatric prescriber works on a full-time or part-time basis for a
minimum of 16 hours per week for every 50 consumers. The psychiatric
prescriber provides clinical services to all ACT consumers; works with the
team leader to monitor each consumer’s clinical status and response to
treatment; supervises staff delivery of services: and directs
psychopharmacologic and medical services.

36. Will there be more than one provider in identified geographic location?
If yes, how will referrals be assigned? Contracts will be awarded per team so
there may be multiple providers in a geographic location. Referrals will be made
through the DSAMH Eligibility and Enrollment Unit (EEU).

37. If we’re looking to be considered for more than one team do we need to submit
more than one proposal?
No — please refer to pages 34 and 39 of the REP for specific instructions

38. Can you send the DACT fidelity scale you will be using because I want us all to
be submitting budgets that look similar and be clear about the rules?
Yes. It will be the Dartmouth model.




39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

Please provide a link to DACTS fidelity scale and staffing requirements you will
be using.

http://www.illinoismentalhealthcollaborative.com/provider/resources/ ACT instru
ctions_4-16-08.pdf

Mix of ACT vs. ICM. You’re asking us to propese which programs. Do you
have a feel for population?

We cannot give an accurate account of this until we go through the process of
reassessment and assignment. This reassessment and assignment will occur prior
to the commencement of the new contracts.

Docs the state pharmacy have the ability of billing all insurance providers
currently?
It will have the capability when the contract begins.

You stated organizations didn’t have to be non profit. Is this open to faith based
organizations as well?
Yes, as long as they meet certification standards.

Where do you want us to delineate non-Dartmouth non-DACT staff?
We are not sure of the meaning of this question.

Are you expecting everybody except program assistance to be in that 12%
overhead?
Please see #46,

Are you saying that if there’s an administrator, business manager, you want these
folks in the overhead? Will these costs fall under the 12% limited cap?
Please see #46

You are asking to have non-DACTS staff such as an administrator to be included
in indirect or overhead costs. This will increase the usual overhead. Will you
allow organizations to exceed the 12% guideline for indirect costs?

DHSS currently has a 12% cap for indirect costs — We are currently working
with a national consultant to update our reimbursement methodology. All
anticipated and approved costs will be part of the methodology.

The pharmacy clarification you made earlier...is there an amendment to the
CRISP RFP as well? Please refer to website for CRISP RFP for specifics relating
to that RFP.

The ASAM tool that’s going to be used to assess potential members of the ACT
team, will that be available during this period of time?
We will attach to the Q & A.




49.

50.

51,

52.

53.

54.

35.

56.

57.

58.

59.

How will individuals pay co-pays to state run pharmacy when they do have zero
income?
This will be done in accordance with established billing procedures.

Is Medicaid the same as Medicare D for purposes of where they can purchase
medications?

Yes

Pharmacy, Section 5, p. 25: Medicare D gap coverage “donut hole”. Kevin said

that the state will “have to pay for that”...please explain exactly what this means,
Provide an example please.

As stated at the pre-bid meeting, clients with Medicaid/Medicare benefits will
have their choice of pharmacy services. Clients who are uninsured will be
directed to the state pharmacy until they become eligible for benefits or for as
long as they need. Co-payments cannot be paid by DSAMH going forward and
co-pays will also be collected in the state pharmacy according to established
billing procedures.

Pharmacy, Section 5, p.25: Please provide a copy of financial used to determine
if a person is able to ... (note: nothing further written on index card).
Question wasn’t complete — unable to respond.

Will transition plans for existing programs be required?
The RFP requires applicants to submit a transition plan as part of the proposal.

The RFP states “the use of subcontractors will not be permitted.” Does this
preclude the use of contract psychiatrists and nurses?
No.

The last paragraph on p.30 references Appendix H. There is no Appendix H?
Page 88 is Appendix H

What are the exact specifications for submission?
Please see RFP

What does printed and “bound” mean?
Three-ring binders, comb or wire binding ~ whichever vou prefer

What is the preference for binding the printed copies? Three-ring binders? Comb
or wire binding? Other?
No preference as long as it is bound

Any margin specs?
No.




60. Any font specs?
No.

61. Do you want each section to start on a separate page?
This is up to the proposer.

62. Do you want tabs?
This is up to the proposer

63. Do you want the business proposal bound separately?
The business proposal must be a separate component — it can be bound with the
technical proposal as long it is clearly separate.

64. Can the quality improvement plan be an attachment?
This is up to the proposer

65. When you say sealed can it be sealed in a box?
As long as it is sealed and clearly identified as being in response to this RFP.

66. You said in the RFP that each team will have its own contract and budget,
Does that mean we need to submit a separate proposal for each team? No, as
stated in the RFP, the proposal must contain a statement as to what you are
applying for, how many teams, and what area you are requesting to provide
services in. Separate budgets are required for ACT. ICM or combined teams —
but only 1 for each type of program.

67. Can an agency serve as a rep payee?
No.

68. Once the state has worked out their preferred billing method, will the final
payments/settlement with providers be based on that encounter billing (i.e. the
contract payments will be based on that encounter/billing volume)?

It is anticipated that payments will incorporate both encounter billing and
performance based payments.

69. Will any cost reporting be required?
Yes




70. On page 14, Scope of Service overview, the RFP states ‘the contractor is required

71

to manage a program model that consists of a 100 person ACT team or a 100
person ICM team...The staffing composition must be based on the Dartmouth
fidelity-based ACT model.” The instrument that is used to measure ACT fidelity
under the referenced model is the Dartmouth Assertive Community Treatment
Scale (DACTS). The DACTS provides no provisions for caseload sizes of more
than 10 clients/clinician. By definition, the proposed ICM and Mixed teams do
not meet the highest level of DACTS fidelity. What set of standards for these
teams is DSAMH proposing to use to measure fidelity?

For ACT, the “TEAM? size is 1o be no larger than 100 people per team. The
“CASE LOAD” is to adhere to 1:10 as per DACTS. DSAMH will issue new
standards based on DACTS. As the ICM and mixed model are not discussed
under DACTS, DSAMH has adopted the following case load requirements within
the overall DACT model: ICM 1:20; Mixed 1:15.

- DACTS requires that a full-time psychiatrist be on the staff of a fidelity-based

ACT team for every 100 clients. There are no provisions for this position to be
filled by telemedicine or by a nurse practitioner, physician’s assistant or a
physician who is not a psychiatrist in DACTS. At the pre-bid meeting it was
suggested that a psychiatrist might not be required, but that a substitution of some
other ‘psychiatric practitioner’ could be made. We do not believe that a team
without a full time psychiatrist for every 100 service recipients would meet
DACTS fidelity. Can you clarify DSAMH’s position on this?

Each ACT team must have a full time psychiatrist for every 100 consumers.
Other psychiatric prescribers may fill in the team. Any team not able or intending
to use a full time psychiatrist may submit a proposal with the plan to provide the
required psychiatric services.




72. Our current CCCP contract contains the following non-ACT/ICM components:

Supportive Housing C-3 $1,603,528.00
RMC Expansion funds Ford Ave. C-9 $158,477.00
Qakfield Expansion C-10 $166,980.27
Client Assistance and DPC discharge

initiative $484,030.00
Successful Discharge incentive C-4 $60,000.00
Supportive Employment C-5 $66,000.00
RVRC Wilmington C-6 $147,788.00
Dover Consumer Directed Program C-7 $88,738.22

There is no mention of what will happen to these items and they are not included
in what is being requested in the RFP. Can DSAMH clarify the Division’s
intentions relative to these current contract components?

We will work with each of the cutrent CCCP providers on these other program
compaonents.

73. Is the bidder required to be a not-for profit organization, or are for profit
organizations eligible to bid as long as they are not currently debarred or
suspended, or otherwise ineligible to conduct business in the State of Delaware?
Yes, for profit organizations are eligible to bid.

74. (Page 38, N. Implementation Plan): What are the ramp-up expectations? To be
faithful to the DACT model a full staff should be in place before the first
consumer is enrolled in services. Are there start-up costs to pay for the highly
specialized staffing requirements of an ACT or ICM or ACT/ICM team?

Given that the client population currently exists and will be transferred from the
CCCP to the ACT/ICM teams, there will be very little time for ramp up.
However, this can be negotiated with DSAMH. In addition, any request for start-
up funds will be negotiated with successful providers

75. (Page 72, 13. Corporation Data): Can documents be California vs. Delaware with
intentions to obtain Delaware documents once/if funded?
Yes

76. (Page 34, 2. Organizational Intent): Can “location” be defined in the context that
the “Location of facility (facilities) must be identified.”? Does this mean that the
applicant would have to have a physical facility in place pre-bid?

No, however. the applicant is required to identify the coverage area(s) in which
they are requesting to provide services.

77. How is this population currently being served?
They are currently served by the four Community Continuum of Care Programs
(CCCP). These will no longer exist once this RFP process and subsequent
contracting are complete.




78.

79.

80.

What data management system is in place to manage the visits and data for the
consumers?
This is currently being developed

What is the system for providers to bill Medicaid? If we are understanding the
question, EDIS.

Are there specific staff that must be on the ACT or ICT team?
DACTS specifically outlines staffing and staff to consumer ratio.

81. How is the regions case load teams determined?
The LEU will continue to review and assign consumers.

82. How far would one team have to travel?
It is not DSAMH’s intent to create teams that serve clients that live outside of a
single County or a distance that is greater than the size of any of Delaware’s
Counties.

83. What are the reimbursed units and maximum units an individual can get as
service per month?
This is currently being developed.

84. Is an office required in the region you are providing service?
This is not required but the respondent must address accessibility to all contracted
services.

85. How many providers are currently providing housing? Are these providers able
to provide ACT services?
There are currently five. Any of the current providers may bid for ACT/ICM
services and if successful may continue to provide housing services as well,

CORRECTIONS TO THE RFP

Page 49 Item 3 Proposal Evaluation Criteria number 2: is deleted in its entirety and a new

number 2 is substituted in lieu thereof to read; Proposed Program Design.

Page 39, Business Proposal Requirements: The last sentence “Client costs are to be

identified on a separate worksheet.” is hereby deleted.

10




SECTION 2 — DHSS POLICY MEMORANDUM #37



STATE OF DELAWARE
DELAWARE HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES
POLICY MEMORANDUM NUMBER 37 February 1, 2009
SUBJECT: STANDARD ABILITY TO PAY FEE SCHEDULE (replaces February 1, 2008)
. PURPOSE
To establish a uniform ability to pay schedule and to supplement existing
collection policy or agreements to standardize Departmental collection efforts for

recovery of accounts receivable that amount to less than the full cost of care due,
in accordance with Delaware Code, Title 29, Section 7940.

i1 DEFINITIONS

1. The "Cost of Services Rendered" in this policy shall mean the "Cost of
Care” as used in Delaware Code, Title 29, Section 7940 and DHSS Policy
Memorandum Number 12.

2. Disposable income for determination of ability to pay shall be gross
income less a standard deduction and taxes paid.

3 Standard deduction shall be based on 100% of the poverty level.
. EXCLUSIONS

This Policy Memorandum is not applicable to persons supported by Medicaid,
Medicare, CHAMPUS, or private insurance with the exception of deductibles,
coinsurance and charges for non-covered services of those payers who have
contracts with DHSS facilities.

V. FOREWORD

1. Respective Divisions shall continue to pursue recovery of the full cost of
services rendered in accordance with the Department of Health and
Social Services Policy Memorandum Number 12, as applicable.

2. Facilities should make every effort to assure that clients and legally liable
persons are aware of and understand their fiscal liability, their right to
request an adjustment to that liability, and the procedures to appeal the
ability to pay determination.

3. Division Directors will develop procedures under the guidelines in Section
Vi for implementation of this policy within their respective Divisions.




POLICY MEMORANDUM NUMBER 37
February 1, 2009

Page Two

V. PROCEDURES

A INPATIENT SERVICES

The facility administration shall request, preferably before or, in case of
emergency, after the patient is admitted or treated, a written agreement with
those persons receiving or to receive care and/or treatment from the facility and,
where appropriate, of the liable person(s) for the recovery of the full cost of
care.(Appendix A) Liability of persons other than the patient shall be governed by
the provisions of 29 Del. C. 7940 (a).The following procedures shall be
implemented when a written agreement for the recovery of the full cost of
services rendered cannot be obtained.

1. DHSS Ability to Pay Worksheet (Appendix B) should be completed for the
person receiving care and for any other person liable under 29 Del. Code,
7940 (a), to determine disposable income and the minimum annual fee
due based on the ability to pay. (Instructions on completion of the
worksheet are on Attachment | “DHSS Ability to Pay Worksheet
Instructions™.)

2. The liability will automatically be waived for anyone with disposable
income less then $6,000.

3. The liable person shall be informed, in writing, of his/her liability, due
dates of payment, and appeal procedures. (Appendix C).

4. All other payment agreements, in force prior to implementation of this
Ability to Pay Fee Schedule, shall be gradually phased-out, for
conformance, at the time of automatic review, which is at least every two
(2) years. (Delaware Code, Title 29, Section 7940, Paragraph (d).

B. COMMUNITY-BASED & OUTPATIENT SERVICES

The Divisions shall determine the ability to pay of their clients for community-
based and outpatient services and shall maintain a record of this information,
which will be available at all service locations. The ability to pay will be
determined, utilizing a sliding scale. The scale will be set using a range from
200% to 275% of the poverty level, with anyone whose gross income is at 200%
or less of the poverty level, receiving the services free of charge. The percentage
of charges to be paid will increase 20% for each 15% of the poverty level, the
gross income increases with anyone whose gross income is above 260% of the
poverty level paying 100% of the charge. The ability to pay sliding scale will be
applied to the fees which are developed and implemented by the individual
divisions of DHSS for each of the services they provide. The attached Table A
shows the actual income levels to be used for family levels from 1 to 10.

Policy Memorandum 37
February 1, 2009

Page Three




TABLE A

Family  Poverty Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual

Size % Level Income Income Income Income Income Income

Poverty Up To UpTo Up To Up To Up To Over
200% 215% 230% 245% 260% 260%

-

$10,830 $21.660  $23,285 $24,909 $26,534 528,158  $28,158

2 14,570 29,140 31,326 33,511 35,697 37,882 37,882
3 18.310 36,620 39,367 42,113 44,860 47 606 47,606
4 22,050 44,100 47,408 50,715 54,023 57,330 67,330
5 25790 51,580 55,449 59,317 63,186 67,054 67,054
6 29,530 59,060 63,490 67,919 72,348 76,778 76,778
7 33270 66,540 71,531 76,521 81,512 86,502 86,502
8 37,010 74,020 79,572 85,123 90,875 96,226 96,226
9 40,750 81,500 87,613 93,725 99,838 105,950 105,950

10 44,490 88,980 95,654 102,327 109,001 115674 115,674

% of Charge to be paid;

-0 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Ncte: Federal guidelines related to specific programs
take precedent over this policy

VI ADMINISTRATIVE DETERMINATION

Division Directors are authorized to make administrative adjustments to the
monthly fee calculated by the facility in lieu of submission to the Appeals
Committee, if circumstances justify such adjustments. Administrative adjustment
should be made only where the individual(s) have extraordinary expenses over
which they have no control {i.e., medical bills, etc.). The procedures for
administrative determination shall be as follows:

Policy Memorandum 37
February 1, 2009
Page Four




1. Division Directors should establish a Review Panel, consisting of three
members: the Division Director or Deputy Director, an Institutional
Representative and a Community-Based Representative.

2, Upon receipt of a written request appealing the ability to pay
determination, the facility administration shall notify the individual that the
appeal has been received and will forward the appeal request to the
Division Director's office within five (5) working days for administrative
review.

3. The Review Panel will meet no less than once a month to review the
appeals received and make their determination.

4, The Review Panel shall notify the facility and the individual who is making
‘the appeal concerning their determination within five (5) working days of
the review.

5, If the Review Panel concurs with the criginal determination, the appeal

will be forwarded to the Appeals Committee for final review.
VII. APPEALS

After implementation of Ability to Pay Fee Schedule, any person aggrieved by
any decision with respect to the payment of fees, refusal of admission or
discharge for other than medical reasons, may appeal by petition to the Appeals
Committee in writing, stating the substance of the decision appealed, the facts in
support of the appeal and the relief sought.

The Appeals Committee consist of the Chairpersons of the:

o Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities Services;
o Advisory Council on Substance Abuse and Mental Health;
o Advisory Council for Delaware Hospital f/t Chronically (Il
o Public (Physical} Health Advisory Council.

1. The Appeals Committee shall hold a hearing within sixty (60) days and
shall render its decision promptly. The Committee's decision shall be final
and binding.

2. The Secretary's Office will receive the appeal information, schedule the

hearing and notify the Appeals Committee and the individual appealing of
the date and location of the hearing.

3. The appeals hearings will be chaired on a rotating basis with each
member of the committee serving as chairperson for a period of three (3)
months.

Note: Appeals Committee - Delaware_Code, Title 29, Section 7940, Paragraph (m).
POLICY MEMORANDUM NUMBER 37
February 1, 2009
Page Five




VIILL COLLECTION

Collection efforts and write-off procedures shall be in conformance with
DHSS Policy Memorandum Number 19.

IX. ADMINISTRATION

An Ability to Pay Committee shall be available to help resolve
implementation/interpretation problems. It will set up such rules and
regulations as are deemed necessary, pursuant to the authority granted
by 29 Del. C. 7940 (j).

1. A permanent committee shall be assigned to monitor and
administer the Ability to Pay Fee Schedule.

2. The Ability to Pay Committee shall consist of:
(a) Two representatives each from the Divisions of Substance
Abuse and Mental Health; Developmental Disabilities
Services; and Public Health;
(b) One representative from the Division of Management
Services, who shall serve as Chairman.

X. EFFECT
1. This policy shall become effective on February 1, 2009,

2. Any part thereof which is inconsistent with any Federal, State or
local law shall be null and void.

Rita
Landgratf

Rita M. Landgraf
Secretary
Department of Health & Social Services

Attachment

POLICY MEMORANDUM NUMBER 37
February 1, 2009
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APPENDIX A
LETTERHEAD
Patient Name

Date:

Dear

This is to advise you that the charge for services rendered at (facility) is
$ per day. The patient and/or any persons legally liable under Title 29, Section 7940
of the Delaware Code will be billed for these services.

Please complete and return this form
to by
Financial Services Rep. (Date)
Check if Applicable: :

1. | have the following insurance coverage, which should be billed:

-—-- Blue Cross
——-- Medicare

—— Other Insurance
—-— Medicaid

Group # Policy #
Name of Person insured

2. | will make full payment as billed.
3. | am unable to pay the full amount.

Date Signature

If #3 is checked, please submit the following information for our review to determine an
appropriate payment based on your ability to pay.

1. A copy of your most recent Federal and State Income Tax returns.
2. A copy of alt W-2 Forms submitted with your tax returns.
3. Other documents which show your current income.

You will be notified in writing of our determination. We will be unable to make any
adjustments to the amount, which you are required to pay if the information is not submitted.

Thank you for your cooperation.
Sincerely,
POLICY MEMORANDUM NUMBER 37
February 1, 2009
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APPENDIX B




PATIENT NAME: DATE:

ADDRESS: GUARANTOR NAME:
ADMISSION DATE: ADDRESS:
INSURANCE COVERAGE:

PREPARED BY:

APPROVED BY:

1. GROSS INCOME $

LESS:
2. STANDARD DEDUCTION

3. TAXES WITHHELD
FICA
FEDERAL INCOME
STATE INCOME
CITY WAGE

4. TAX (REFUNDS)/PAYMENTS

5. TOTAL DEDUCTIONS (SUM OF LINES 2-4) $

6. DISPOSABLE INCOME (LINE 1 LESS LINE 5) $

7. MAXIMUM ANNUAL FEE DUE BASED ON ABILITY
TO PAY. (10% OF LINE 6) $

8. MONTHLY PAYMENT. (LINE 7 DIVIDED BY 12) 3

POLICY MEMORANDUM NUMBER 37
February 1, 2009
Page Eight

DHSS
ABILITY TO PAY WORKSHEET
INSTRUCTIONS




LINE 1. Gross income is obtained from a copy of the Tax Return, if one was filed, or from a copy
of other payment sources (if non-taxable, such as Welfare payments, Pension payments, or
other income).

LINE 2. Standard Deduction is shown below, (for families with more than 8 persons, add $3,740
for each additional person).

Household Amount Household Amount
Size Size

1 $10,830 6 29,530
2 14,570 7 33,270
3 18,310 8 37.010
4 22,050 9 40,750
5 25,790 1

0 . 44 490
LINE 3: Taxes withheld are obtained from a copy of W-2 forms.

LINE 4: Amount of tax refunds or payments are from Federal and State tax returns.
LINE &: Total deductions equal the sum of Lines 2 through 4.

LINE 6: Disposable income is Gross income (Line 1) less total deductions (Line 5).

LINE 7: Maximum annual fee is 10% of disposable income (Line 6 X .1). (The maximum annual
fee will be automatically waived if disposable income is less than $6,000.)

LINE 8: Monthly payment = Annual payment (Line 7) divided by 12.

POLICY MEMORANDUM NUMBER 37

February 1, 2009

Page Nine
APPENDIX C
LETTERHEAD

NAME: DATE:




ADDRESS:

PATIENT NAME;

DEAR

We have reviewed the information which you supplied and have calculated your
minimum monthly payment according to Delaware Law 29 Del. C. 7940 and Department of
Heatlth and Social Services Policy Memorandum Number 37. You are responsible for a monthly
payment of $ for the services rendered to the above named patient. A copy of our
calculation has been enclosed for your benefit. Payments are due by the 20th of the month for
the previous month's care.

You have the right to appeal the determination, in writing, to the Appeals Committee
stating the substance of the decision being appealed, the facts in support of the appeal, and the
relief sought.

Appeals should be submitted to:

Appeals Committee Administrator

(Facility Name)

(Facility Address)

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.

Sincerely,




SECTION 3 — DRAFT CERTIFICATION STANDARDS
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PROVIDER CERTIFICATION MANUAL
FOR
COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES PROGRAMS

siiilt

Assertive Community Treatmerjt ______
Intensive Care Ma”agem_en't*z: iy

DEPARTM ENT OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES
DIVISION OF SOCIAL SERVICES

OVERVIEW
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This manual contains the standards by which the Division of Substance Abuse and Mental
Health certifies Community Support Services Programs for persons with psychiatric disabilities.
Certification is required for provider enrollment with the Division of Social Services, Delaware
Medical Assistance Program (DMAP) for Medicaid reimbursement through the rehabilitative
services option of Title XIX of the Social Security Amendments.
§‘§

Through an Inter-Divisional Agreement the Division of Substance Al;u§se and Mental Health has
been delegated authority for administration of certain prowsions of the Medicaid program
pertaining to optional rehabilitative services. These provisions mclude the following: 1)
certification of programs for provider enroliment: 2) rate setting; and 3) performance
improvement, Delegated performance :mprovement funct:ons include program monitoring,
utilization control, training and technical assrstance :

,,,,,

persons with disabilities caused by menta[ |IIness and substance use disorders. The
Community Continuum of Care Program (CCCP), Psychosocnal Rehabllltatlon Center (PRC) and
Residential Rehabilitation Facility (RRF) are categorles of: commumty support programs that the
Division certifies for Medlcald ‘provider enroilment. Services are provided for as long as
medically necessary to: ass:st servr<_:e recipients to cope with the symptoms of their illnesses,

minimize the effects of thelr disabilities on their capac:ty for independent living and prevent or
limit periods of inpatient treatment‘ e <

Socraf Services (DHSS) Delaware Medical Assistance Program (DMAP) has delegated
the functlon of . cert:fylng organizations for enrollment as providers of optional
behavioral . health community support services to the Division of Substance Abuse
and Mental Health (Division or DSAMH).

1.2 Certification Criteria - Eligibility for certification to provide community support
services is determined according to the following criteria:
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1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1l

BE

Organizations eligible to apply for provider certification and enrollment
with DHSS for Medicaid reimbursement of Community Support Services
include:

1.2.1.1 Private non-profit human service corporations;

1.2.1.2 Private for-profit human service corporations;

1.2.1.3 State, county or municipal government operated health
and human services departments

The Division bases its certification of programs and‘enrollment
recommendation to DHSS upon the orgamzatlon 5 compllance with state

shriid

level organizational, admmlstratrve and program standards and with
federal requirements for the admmistratlon of Medicaid services as
contained in federal statutes, regulations and guidelines.

1.2.2.1 The DIVISiOF] may establish and apply minimum
compllance gusdel:nes to be used in’ making certification
determinations, ;

T
it
H i

The Dlwsron uses a cemficatron survey: ‘to measure compliance with

‘:drgamzatronal admmlstra’tlve and program standards. The determination

i3

wsth regard to a program's certlfrcatlon is based on:

il

o1 .2.3.‘155ta”t'em'é‘nt§fof ‘thejorganization’s authorized

_ representatives;
1.2.3.2 Documents provided to the Division by the organization; 1.2.3.3
Documented compllance with organizational, program and
admmlstratlve standards;
1.2.3.459n—51te observations by surveyor.

[
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2 Definitions

Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) is a self-contained mental health program made up of
transdisciplinary mental health staff, including a peer specialist, who work as a team to provide
the majority of treatment, rehabilitation, and support services consumers need to achieve their
goals. ACT services are individually tailored with each consumer through relatronsh:p building,
mdmduallzed assessment and plannrng, and active mvolvement wnth consumers to enable each

ACT team is moblle and delivers services in communlty Iocatlons rather than expecting the
consumer to come to the program. Seventy-five percent or more of the o

services are provided outside of program offices in locations that are comfortable and
convenient for consumers. The consumers served have severe and persistent mental illness that
are complex, have devastating effects on functioning, and because of the limitations of
traditional mental health services, may have gone without ' approprlate services. There should be
no more than 10 consumers to one staff me ber on each team.

Activities of Daily Living Services include z:lpproache= to; support and budd skills in a range of
activities of daily living (ADLs) including but ot Irmlted to fmdlng housing, performing
household activities, carrymg out personal hyglene and grooming tasks, money management,
accessing and using transportatron resources, and accessmg services from a physician and
dentist. R

H [

C'IfmcaISuperwsron is a systematlc process to rewew each consumer's clinical status and to

ensure that. the mdlwduallzed serwces and interventions that the team members provide

(mclud ‘g the peer specnallst)‘ are planned with, purposeful for, effective, and satisfactory to the
H‘The team leader nd the psych|atr|c prescriber have the responsibility to provide
clinical supen, ision which occurs during daily organizational staff meetings, recovery planning
meetings, and‘ln individual meetmgs with team members. Clinical supervision also includes
review of wrltten documentation (e.g., assessments, recovery plans, progress notes,

correspondence),

Comprehensive Assessmentis the organized process of gathering and analyzing current and
past information with each consumer and the family and/or support system and other
significant people to evaluate: 1) mental and functional status: 2) effectiveness of past
treatment; 3) current treatment, rehabilitation and support needs to achieve individual goals
and support recovery; and 4) the range of individual strengths (e.g., knowledge gained from
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dealing with adversity or personal/professional roles, talents, personal traits) that can act as
resources to the consumer and his/her recovery planning team in pursuing goals. The results of
the information gathering and analysis are used to: 1) establish immediate and longer-term
service needs with each consumer; 2) set goals and develop the first person-centered recovery
plan with each consumer; and 3) optimize benefit that can be derived from existing strengths
and resources of the individual and his/her family and/or natural support network in the
community,

Consumeris a person who has agreed to receive services and is recelvmg person-centered
treatment, rehabilitation, and support services from the ACT team )

Crisis Assessment and Intervention includes services offered 24 hours per day, seven days per
week for consumers when they are experiencing crisis. R

Daily Log is hand written or computerized form which the ACT team maintains on a daily
bas:s to provide: 1) a roster of consumers served |n the’ program and 2) for each consumer, a

contacts WhICh are scheduled to be completed during the current day and revise as needed; 3)
assign ‘staff to carry out the days service activities; and 4) revise recovery plans and plan for
emergency and cr15|s snuatlons as needed The daily log and the daily staff assignment

DarlyStaffAssrgnmentScheduIe is a written, daily timetable summarizing all consumer
treatment and service COntacts to be divided and shared by staff working on that day. The daily
staff assignment schedule will be developed from a central file of all weekly consumer
schedules.

Family and Natural Supports’ Psychoeducation and Supportis an approach to working in
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partnership with families and natural supports to provide current information about mental
illness and to help them develop coping skills for handling problems posed by mental iliness as
experienced by a significant other in their lives.

Individual Treatment Team (ITT) is a group or combination of three to five ACT staff members
who together have a range of clinical and rehabilitation skills and expertlse The ITT members
are assigned by the team leader and the psychiatric prescriber to work collaboratively with a
consumer and his/her family and/or natural supports in the commumty by the time of the first
person-centered recovery planning meeting or thirty days after admissmn The core members
are the primary practitioner, the psychiatric prescriber, and at Ieast one clmlcal or rehabhilitation
staff person who shares case coordination and service provision tasks for each consumer, The
ITT has continuous responsibility to be knowledgeab!e about the consumer’s llfe_,':
circumstances, goals and desires; to collaborate with the consumer to develop and write the
recovery plan; to offer options and choices in the recovery plan; to ensure that immediate
changes are made as a consumer's needs change and to advocate for the consumer’s wishes,

”;che ITT in the recovery plan.

‘‘‘‘‘‘

_ make changes in their feelings,
thoughts, and behav:or m order to move toward recovery, clarify goals, and address stigma.
Supportive therapy and psychotherapy also help consumers understand and identify symptoms
in order to find strategies to Iessen d|stress and symptomatology, improve role functioning,
and evaluate treatment and rehablhtatlve services.

treatment and rehabllltatlon‘fnd support service needs, and 4) the range of |nd|V|dual
strengths that can actas resources to the person and his/her ITT in pursuing goals. The results
of the lnformatlon gatherlng and analysis are used to establish the initial recovery plan to
achieve individual goals and support recovery. Completed the day of admission, the consumer’s
initial assessment and:recovery plan guides team services until the comprehensive assessment
and full person—centered recovery plan is completed.

Medication Assistance is the oversight of medication adherence where a member of the ITT
observes self administration of medication. ITT members must receive Assistance With Self
Administered Medication (AWSAM) training at the beginning of employment and annually
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thereafter. No ITT member may observe medication administration prior to initial AWSAM
training.

Medication Distribution is the physical act of giving medication to consumers in a ACT program
by the prescribed route which is consistent with state law and the licenses of the professionals
privileged to prescribe and/or administer medication (e.g., psychlatrlc prescribers, registered
nurses, and pharmacists). ;

Medjcation Erroris any error in prescribing or administering a specific medication, including
errors in writing or transcribing the prescription, in obtalmng and admmlstermg the correct
medication, in the correct dosage, in the correct form,:and at the correct tlme

3N

and risks of psychotropic and other medlcatlon to choose a medlcatlon treatment; and to
establish a method to prescribe and evaluate medlcatlon accordmg to evrdence based practice
standards. T :

ACT Primary Practitionerlea'ds’”é‘nd coordinates the activities of the individual treatment team
(ITT) and is the ITT member who has primary respon5|blllty for establishing and marntamlng a
therapeutlc re!at:onshf W

goals and deswes The pr:mary practltloner develops and collaborates W|th the consumer to
wnte the person centered recovery pIan offers options and choices in the recovery plan,

community resources 1nc|ud|ng consumer-run services, to coordinate activities and integrate
other agency or servrce actlvmes into the overall service plan with the consumer. The primary
practitioner prowdeswndlvndual supportive therapy and provides primary support and education
to the family and/or support system and other significant people. In most cases the primary
practitioner is the first ITT member available to the consumer in crisis. The primary practitioner
shares these service activities with other members of the ITT who are responsible to perform
them when the primary practitioner is not working.

Peer Support and Wellness Recovery Services include services which serve to validate
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consumers’ experiences, provide guidance and encouragement to consumers to take
responsibility for and actively participate in their own recovery, and help consumers identify,
understand, and combat stigma and discrimination against mental illness and develop
strategies to reduce consumers’ self-imposed stigma. Such services also include counseling
and support provided by team members who have experience as remplents of mental health
services for severe and persistent mental illness.

Person-Centered Recovery plan is the culmination of a contmumg process involving each
consumer, their family and/or natural supports in the communlty, and the ACT team, which
individualizes service activity and intensity to meet the consumer 5 speafic treatment,
rehabilitation, and support needs. The written recovery plan ‘documents the consumer s
strengths, resources, self-determined goals, and the 'services necessary to help the consumer
achieve them. The plan also delineates the rolesand responsrbllltles of the team members who
will work collaboratively with each consumer in carrying. out the services.

Psychiatric and Social Functioning Hrstory Trme Lineis a format or system which helps ACT
staff to organize chronologically mformatron about significant events in a consumer's life,
experience with mental iliness, and treatment history,’ This format allows staff to more
systematically analyze and evaluate the mformatlon with the consumer, to formulate

rehabilitation approaches and mterventlons W|th the consumer

g .,:;1‘. ...; {iy
Psychotropic Medication i is any drug used to treat, manage or control psychiatric symptoms or
dlsordered behavuor, mcludmg but not Ilmlted to antipsychotic, antidepressant, mood-

Hf

resources, mcludmg consumer self-help and advocacy organizations that promote recovery,

Social and Community Integration Skills Training includes services to support social and
interpersonal relationships and leisure time activities, with an emphasis on skills acquisition
and generalization in integrated community-based settings.
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Supported Education provides the opportunities, resources, and supports to individuals with
mental illness so that they may gain admission to and succeed in the pursuit of post-secondary
education, including high school, GED, and vocational school,

Symptom Management is an approach directed to help each consumer identify and target the
symptoms and occurrences of his or her mental illness and develop methods to help reduce the
impact of those symptoms.

Transdisciplinary Approach specifies that team members share:rolesiand systematically cross
discipline boundaries. The primary purpose of this approach is to pool and mtegrate the
expertise of team members so that more efficient and c0mprehenswe assessment and
intervention services may be provided. The commumcatron style in this type of team mvolves
his/her famlly/other natural supports) on a regular, pIanned ba5|s The role dlfferentratlon
between disciplines is defined by the needs of the situation rather than by discipline-specific
characteristics. The transdisciplinary approach can be contrasted W|th the multidisciplinary
approach in which team members mdependently carry out assessments and implement their
own section of the treatment plan, rather than ina cr —dlsupllnary, integrated fashion, which
also serves to actively mvolve the consumer |n thelr own assessment and treatment.

Recoveryplan Reviewisga: thoroug:h' written surn:rnary describing the consumer's and the I'IT'

Recoveryplannmg Meetmgls a regular!y scheduled meeting conducted under the supervision of
the team Ieader and the’ psychlatrlc prescrlber The purpose of these meetings is for the staff,

<<<<<

their work together The group meets together to present and mtegrate the information
collected through assessment In order to learn as much as possible about the consumer’s life,
his/her experlence wnth mental iliness, and the type and effectiveness of the past treatment
they have received. T’ presentatlons and discussions at these meetings make it possible for all

staff to be familiar W|th’each consumer and his/her goals and aspirations and for each
consumer to become famlllar with each ITT staff person; to participate in the ongoing
assessment and reformulation of strengths, resources, and service needs/issues; to problem-
solve treatment strategies and rehabhilitation options; and to fully understand the recovery plan
rationale in order to carry out the plan for each.
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Vocational Services include work-related services to help consumers value, find, and maintain
meaningful employment in community-based job sites as well as job development and
coordination with employers.

Weekly Consumer Contact Schedule is a written schedule of the specific interventions or service
contacts (i.e., by whom, when, for what duration, and where} which fquIII the goals and
objectives in a given consumer's person-centered recovery plan. The ITT shall maintain an up-
to-date weekly consumer contact schedule for each consumer pér the person-centered
recovery plan. ‘

Wellness Management and Recovery Services are a combination of psychosocial approaches to
working with the consumer to build and apply skills related to his or her recovery, lncludmg
development of recovery strategies, building social support reducmg relapses, uslng
medication effectively, coping with stress, coping with problems and symptoms, and getting
needs met within the mental health system and communit

JEE

-----

in medical need of program serwces in accordance W|th an assessment procedure
approved be the Division for use in determining that persons are severely disabled
according to criteria fdf'Severity of disability associated with mental lliness. The
assessment must provide supportmg ewdence of the following criteria:

functlonmg in c0mmun|ty living. Priority is given to people with
schlzophrema ‘other psychotic disorders (e.g., schizoaffective disorder),
~and bipolar disorder because these illnesses more often cause long-term
Bt psyclj_latrlc disability. Individuals must have a primary mental health

' diagnosis or COD diagnosis. Individuals with a sole diagnosis of a
substance use disorder, mental retardation, brain injury or Axis Il
disorders are not the intended consumer group for ACT services.
Individuals who have not been able to remain abstinent from drugs or
alcohol will not be excluded from ACT services.
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3.1.3 Significant functional impairments as demonstrated by at least one of the
following conditions:

3.1.3.1 Significant difficulty consistently performing the range of practical
daily living tasks required for basic adult functioning in the
community (e.g., caring for personal business affairs; obtaining
medical, legal, and housing services; récognizing and avoiding
common dangers or hazards to self and possessions; meeting
nutritional needs; maintaining personal hygiene) or persistent or
recurrent difficulty performmg dally living tasks except with
significant support or aSSistance from others’ such as friends,
family, or relatives. i

3.1.3.2Significant difficulty mamtalnmg conssstent employment at a self-
sustaining level or significant: d‘ifflcuity consistently carrying out
the homerhaker_role (e.g., household meal preparation, washing
clothes, budgeting, or child-care tasks and responsibilities).

3. 1 3. SSlgnlflcant dlfflculty malntalnmg a safe living situation (e.g.,
al repeated evictions or Ioss of housing).

.. High use of acute psychiatric hospitals (e.g., two or
.~ more admissions per year) or psychiatric emergency
services,

Intractable (i.e., persistent or very recurrent) severe
major symptoms (e.g.,affective, psychotic, suicidal).
Co-occurring substance use disorder of significant
duration {e.g., greater than six months).

High risk or recent history of criminal justice
involvement (e.g., arrest and incarceration).

3.1.3.4.5 Significant difficulty meeting basic survival needs or
residing in substandard housing, homelessness, or at
imminent risk of becoming homeless.
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3.1.3.4.6  Residing in an inpatient or supervised community
residence, but clinically assessed to be able to live in a
more independent living situation if intensive services
are provided, or requiring a residential or institutional
placement if more intensive services are not available.

3.1.3.4.7 Difficulty effectively utilizing traditional office-based
outpatient services or other less-intensive community-
based programs (e.g. :zco'h'é'; er fails to progress,
drops out of service)ii:”

3.1.3.5 Documentation of admlssmn shaH mclude ”

3.1.3.5.1 The reasons for admission as stated by both the
consumer and the ACT team.
3.1.3.5.2  The signature of the psychiatric prescriber.

3.1.4 The Division may require a full review of medlcal necessity in the event
that a determmanonao fnedical necessity the:program physician does
not appear to DSAMHto be §Upported by the ssessment materials.

3.1.5 Determination of consumer ellglblllty'ff"r.Medlca!d benefits is the sole
responsrblhty of DHSS. i

3.2 The CCCP shall notify DSAMH a minimum of fourteen (14) days prior to the tentative
dischar_ge date of any consurher being considered for discharge by ACT Team.

3.2.3 The CCCP shall consult and cooperate with DSAMH in the development
and lmp!ementatlon of a mutually agreed upon consumer retention plan

,,,,,

when retention is deemed by DSAMH as preferable to discharge.

,.vi

4 The CCCP shall consult and cooperate with DSAMH in the development
.“and implementation of a mutually agreed upon discharge plan, including

referral/transfer to appropriate post-discharge services.

3.2.5 The termination of services shall occur when consumers:

3.2.5.1 Have successfully reached individually established goals for
discharge and when the consumer and program staff mutually
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agree to the termination of services.

3.2.5.2 Move outside the geographic area of ACT's responsibility. In such
cases, the ACT team shall arrange for transfer of mental health
service responsibility to a ACT program or another provider
wherever the consumer is moving. The ACT team shall maintain
contact with the consumer until this service transfer is completed.

3.2.5.3 Demonstrate an ability to function in all major role areas (i.e.,
work, social, selfcare) without requiring ongoing assistance from
the program for at least one year without sngmﬂcant relapse when
services are withdrawn. :

3.2.5.4 Decline or refuse services and request dlscharge desplte the
team’s best efforts to develop an acceptable person centered

3.2.6 In addition to the dlscharge criteria Ilsted above based on mutual
agreement between the consumer, ACTStaff and DSAMH, a consumer
discharge may also be facllltated due to any one of the following
circumstances: o ‘
3.2.6.1 Death. :
3.2.6.2 Inab|I|ty to locate the consumer for a prolonged period of time.
3.2.6.3 Long-term mcarceratlon

;?5253 2 .6. 4Long-term hospltahzatlon where it has been determined based on
il mupual agreement by the hospital treatment team and the ACT

<team that the con umer will not be appropriate for discharge for a

prolonged perlod of time.

. 327 ff the“consume'r”'-is accessible at the time of discharge, the team shall
: ensure. consumer participation in all discharge
activities. |

3.2.7.1 The discharge summary shall include:

v
I

3.2.7.1.1  Date of discharge;

3.2.7.1.2  Reason for discharge;

3.2.7.1.3  Consumers status upon discharge based on the most
recent Biopsychosocial ;

3.2.7.1.4  Multiaxial DSM diagnosis;
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3.2.7.1.5  Summary of progress toward meeting goals as set forth
in the client centered recovery plan;

3.2.7.1.6  Aftercare/follow-up plan completed in conjunction with
the consumer;

3.2.7.1.7 The consumer’s forwarding address and/or telephone
number.

3.2.8 The discharge summary shall be:

3.2.8.1 Completed within 5 days of diSCharge from't_j}"_
3.2.8.25igned and dated by: , ' h
3.2.8.2.1 The consumer when the dlscharged is planned
3.2.8.2.2 The case manager

3.2.8.2.3 The physician;

3.2.8.2.4 The Team Leader. :

4  Service Intensity and Capacity

4.1 Staff-to- Consumer Ratlo { 2
4.1.1 Each ACT team shall have the organlzatlonai capaaty to provide a minimum staff-

per team. S

4.1.2° Each'ICM team shall have the orgamzatlonal capacity to provide a minimum staff
to consumer tatlon of at least one full-time equivalent (FTE) staff p erson for every

; 20 consumers: (not mcludlng the psychiatric presciber and the program assistant)

program
4.1.3 The maxzmum number of consumers being served by any one ACT team is 80 -
100. Teams of 100 or more may break into two teams.
4.1.4 The maximum nuber of consumers being served by any one ICM team is 150-200.
Teams of 150 or more may break into two teams.

4.2 Staff Coverage
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4.2.1 Each ACT and ICM team shall have sufficient numbers of staff to provide
treatment, rehabilitation, crisis intervention and support services 24 hours a day,
seven days per week,

4.3 Frequency of Consumer Contact

4.3.1 The ACT team shall have the capacity to provide muﬁible contacts per week with
consumers experiencing severe symptoms, trying a new i'n_edication, experiencing
a health problem or serious life event, trying to éo back to 's'c'hool or starting a
new job, making changes in living 5|tuat|on ‘or employment, or having significant
ongoing problems in daily living. These mu!tlple contacts may be‘as frequent as
two to three times per day, seven days per week and depend on consumer need
and a mutually agreed upon plan between consumers ‘and program staff. Many, if

sing the needs of all consumers

requiring frequent contact
4.3.2 The ICM team shall have the capa ty to provide muItlple contacts per month with

the capablity to refer consumers to an ACT team if more frequent contacts are

needed periods where the consumers’ symptorns_rnake weekly or more frequent

contacts necessary . Contacts should be as frequent as mutuallyl agreed upon
betwenn consumer and program staff but no less frequently than once every 14

consumers requmng more. frequent contact

ety
[

i
wasd”

zi‘The foliowmg services: as deemed necessary by assessment and prescribed by the
individual recovery plan W|II be provided:

“..Psychiatric and ‘so!:‘)stanc‘é abuse treatment;

43.4.1 ‘”PSychiatris't;'; Face-to-face evaluation a minimum of every 14 days for the first

a0 days of treatment and then every 30 days thereafter.
i 1*

4.3.4.2 Medication monitoring as follows:

4.3.4.2.1 The psychiatrist will explain to the consumer the rationale for each
medication prescribed as well as the medication’s risks/benefits.
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4.3.4.2.2 Informed consent shall be obtained for each medication prescribed at the
time it is prescribed.

4.3.4.2.3 I[nformed consent shall be updated, at a minimum, annually.

4.3.4.2.4 Rationale for all changes in medication orders shall be documented in the
physician's note.

4.3.4.2.5 All medication orders in the consumer's case record shall specify:

4.3.4.2.5.1 Name of the medication;
4.3.4.2.5.2 Dosage; (i
4.3.4.2.5.3 Route of administration; .1\,
4.3.4.2,5.4 Frequency of admlnlstrat:on w
4.3.4.2.5.5 Signature of the phy5|c1an prescrlbmg the medlcatlon

4.3.4.2.6 Administration of medication by‘érii/“method and/or the supervision of
consumers in the self-administration of medication must be conducted
and documented in conformance with the program 's written policies and
procedures for medicatlon management

4.3.4.2.6; Ti Medlcanon admmlstratlon records shall contain the following:
14.2.6.1 'i'/Name of the medrcatlon
4 4.2.6.1 .24Dosage l’,u ¥
4.3.4] 2 6. 1 3: Route of admlnlstratlon
- 4.3.4, 2.6, 51 Frequency of administration;
12?4.3.4.2.6.1.§.AII known drug allergies;
4.3.4.’2.6.1 .6 Name of the person administering or assisting with the
175 administration of medication.
43.4.2.61.7 Slgnature of the person administering or assisting with the
; ' administration of medication.
' 4’3:4 2 6. 2 Staff shall monitor and document consumer adherence to following
’ * the prescribed medication treatment and the medication side effects
to include the following:
4.3.4.2.6.2.1 Laboratory studies for all medications which require laboratory
monitoring as recommended in the current Physician's Desk
Reference;
4.3.4.2.6.2.1.1 Laboratory reports shall:
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4.3.4,2.6.2.1.1.1 be reviewed and signed by the Physician or
Registered Nurse within two {2) days of receipt.
4.3.4.2.6.2.2 Results of all laboratory studies shall be documented in the
consumer's chart within 30 days.
4.3.4.2.6.2.3 AIMS (Abnormal Involuntary Movement Scale) shall be
performed no less than annually to assess clients at risk for
developing Tardive Dyskinesia.
4.3.4.2.6.2.4 Education of clients regardmg side effects of prescribed
psychotropic medications. .
4.3.4.2.6.2.5 Monitoring of vital signs ‘to include' temperature, blood
pressure, pulse andire‘spiration no less than- monthly.

S5  Staff Requirements

5.1 Qualifications

£.1.1 The ACT team shall have among :ts staff, persons w:th sufficient individual
competence and professional quahflcations and experience to provide:

5.1.1.1  Service: coq'rd_np_anon

5.1.1.2  crisis assessment and mterventlon

5.1.1.3 ,-recovery and symptom management

5.1.1.4 md:wdual counselmg and psychotherapy.

5.1,1.5 ;_;:_medlcatlon prescrlption admmlstratlon monitoring and documentatlon

h substance abuse treatment;
work«-related servuces,
actwmes of daily Ilvmg services;
social, mterpersonai relationship and leisure-time activity services,
. 0 support serv:ces or direct assistance to ensure that consumers obtain the
basm necessnt:es of daily life;
5.1.1.11 and educatlon support, and consultation to consumers' families and other
major supports.
5.1.2 The staff should have sufficient representation of the local cultural population that
the team serves,

6 Team Size
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6.1 The program shall employ a minimum of 10 to 12 FTE transdisciplinary clinical
staff persons, including 1 FTE team leader and 1 FTE peer specialist on the team.

6.2 Mental Health Professionals on Staff
6.2.1 Of the minimum 10 to 12 FTE transdisciplinary clinical staff positions on an ACT
team, there are a minimum of 8 FTE mental health professionals (including one

FTE team leader).

6.2.1.1 Mental health professionals have:

6.2.1.1.1 professional degrees in on_e'Bf the core mental health’dfscipiines;

6.2.1.1.2 clinical training including internships and other supervised practical
experiences in a clinical or rehabilitation setting;

6.2.1.1.3 clinical work experience with persons W|th severe and persistent
mental illness. ShE

6.2.2 Mental health professionals operate .und:”

e code of?éfhics of their professions.
Mental health professmna!s mclude ‘

SR
g
i
58

6.2.2.1 persons mth*masters or doctoral degrees in:
6.2.2.1.1° ‘nursing, :
6.2.2.1.2 soc1al work

.............

6.2.2.1.4. psychdlb'gy,
L 6.2.2.1.5 dlploma assoaate. and bachelor's nurses (i.e., registered nurse},
] i 6.2.2.1.6 and_reglstered.occupattonal therapists.

[

is

6.2.3.2 A minimum of 4 FTE master’s level or above mental health professmnals {in
addition to the team leader).

7 Required Staff

7.1 The chart below shows the required staff:
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Position Requirements
Team leader 1 FTE
Psychiatric prescriber 16-Hours for
50
Consumers
Registered Nurse 3-5FTE
Peer Specialist 1 FTE
Master’s level* 4 FTE
Other level* 1-3FTE
Program/Administrative | 1-1.5 FTE
Assistant )
Chemical Dependency | 1 FTE ;
Specialist (CADC or B
national equivalent)
Vocational 1 FTE
Rehabilitation Specialist

7.2  Vocational Speuallst and 1 FTE Chem:cal Dependency Speuahst may be included
within either the- “Master s Ievel or "Other level” staffing categories above.

7.3

7.3_.-?1‘?" Team Leéder A full __me team Ieader/supemsor who is the clinical and
administrative super\nsor of the team and who also functions as a practicing

“clinician on the ACT team. The team leader has at least a master's degree in
nursmg, social work. psychiatric rehabilitation or psychology, or is a psychiatric

pr"esc‘riber.

7.3.2 Psychiaffféfﬁféscribeﬁ A psychiatric prescriber may include: -
7.3.2'1 A person with a Medical Degree or Doctor of Osteopathy degree,

licensed to practice medicine in Delaware and who has completed (or

is enrolled in) an accredited residency training program in psychiatry,
internal medicine or family practice.
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7.3.2.2 A psychiatric nurse practitioner in psychiatric-mental health nursing
who is licensed to practice medicine in Delaware or participates in the
Nurse Licensure Compact (NLC.)

7.3.3 The psychiatric prescriber works on a full-time or part-time basis for a minimum
of 16 hours per week for every 50 consumers. The psychiatric prescriber provides
clinical services to all ACT consumers; works with the team leader to monitor each
consumer’s clinical status and response to treatment; supervises staff delivery of
services; and directs psychopharmacologic and mediéfei!gervices.

7.3.4 Registered Nurses: All reglstered nurses sha!l be Ilcensed in ‘zhe State of Delaware

registered nurses are requlred i .f .

7.3.5 Master’s Level Mental Health Prafessronals A mmlmum of 4 FTE master s level or
above mental health professionals (in addition to the team leader) are required on
the ACT team.

7.3.6 Chemical Dependency Specialist: One or more team r]jernbers must be Chemical

VocatlonaISpecralrst One or more team members with training and experience in
"':vocatlona! serwces shalf be designated the role of vocational specialist, with
preference glven *to a master’s degree in rehabilitation counseling or at least one
yearof experlence in employment services (e.g., job development, job placement,
supported emp[oyment)

7.3.8 PeerSpecialist.'A minimum of one FTE peer specialist is required on an ACT team.
Because of their life experience with mental illness and mental health services, the
peer specialist provides expertise that professional training cannot replicate. Peer
specialists are fully integrated team members who provide highly individualized
services in the community and promote consumer self-determination and
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decision-making. Peer specialists also provide essential expertise and consultation
to the entire team to promote a culture in which each consumer's point of view
and preferences are recognized, understood, respected and integrated into
treatment, rehabilitation, and community self-help activities.

7.3.9 Remaining Clinical Staff: The remaining clinical staff may be bachelor’s level and
paraprofessional mental health workers who carry out rehabllltatlon and support
functions.

7.3.9.1 A bachelor's level mental health worker has a'bachelor’s degree in
social work or a behavioral ‘SCi"ehc'é;‘and work experience with adults
with severe and persistent mental iliness. o
7.3.9.2 A paraprofessional mental health worke_r may have: _
7.3.9.2.1 a bachelor's degree in‘:e‘field other than behavioral sciences; or
7.3.9.2.2 havea hlgh school degree and work experlence wrth adults with

similar huma Servic
have related tralnlng (e 9., certlfled occupatlona| therapy
assistant, home health care alde) or work experience (e.g.,

*:teaching) and Ilfe experlence

8 Policy and Procedure Requirem ents:

8.1 The Communlty Support Serwces program shall maintain a written procedure manual for

v 81 a1 A statement of the program’s values, mission and objectives;
81.1.2 Referral policies and procedures that facilitate consumer referral;
8.1.1.3  Detailed instructions for assessment, recovery planning and
7 " documentation procedures;
8.1.1.4 Policies and procedures for medication management in compliance

with all applicable rules, regulations and requirements of the
Delaware Board of Medical Practice, the Delaware Board of Nursing
and the Delaware Board of Pharmacy (if applicable) to include policies

and procedures for:
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8.1.1.4.1 Prescribing medication;
8.1.1.4,2 Storage of medication;
8.1.1.4.3 Handling of medication;
8.1.1.4.4 Distribution of medication;
8.1.1.4.5 Dispensing of medication,;
8.1.1.4.6 Disposing of medication; i,
8.1.1.4.7 Recording of medication used by consumers
8.1.1.5 Policies and procedures for handhng on-ca!! responsibilities and
consumer emergencies; ”‘7-1';;,
8.1.1.6 Detailed instructions for appllcatlon to and commumcatlon with
entitlement authorities; : i

8.1.1.7 Pollcres and procedures for sharmg of mformatron about consumers

8.1.1.8 Policies and procedures regardlng commteammg and handllng
financial resources of the program;"
8.1.1.9 Policies and procedures regarding the management of consumer's
funds for whom the program has been ‘designated payee;
8.1.1.10 Policies and procedures for the recelpt consideration and resolution
of consumer comp!amts and/or grlevances regarding treatment

<TTiTi,

.decisions and practrces ‘or other program activities.
8.1. 1 1 T Other pohcues and procedures as maybe promulgated or required by

8.1.2 Personnel Manaééﬁient B

8.1.2.1: The CCCP or parent organization shall maintain an up-to- ~-date
Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual and make it readily available
for reference by the program staff. The Manual will include:
8.1.2.1 .‘I_PoIrCIes and procedures regarding equal employment
' ; 5 opportunity and affirmative action to include compliance with:
3.1:2:1.2 The Americans with Disabilities Act and the Vocational
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Sections 503 and 504 prohibiting
discrimination against the handicapped;
8.1.2.1.3 Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibiting discrimination
on the basis of race, color, creed, sex or national origin;
8.1.2.1.4 Title XIX of Del section 711 prohibiting discrimination on the basis
of race, color, creed, sex, sexual orientation and nationat origin;

]
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8.1.2.1,5 Age discrimination Act of 1975 prohibiting discrimination based
on age;
8.1.2.1.6 Section 402 of the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Assistance
Act of 1974 prohibiting discrimination against disabled Vietnam
Era veterans.
8.1.2.2 Policies and procedures for interviews and selectlon of candidates
including verification of credentials and references
8.1.2.3 Policies and procedures for employee performance appraisal;
8.1.2.4 A code of ethics; o
8.1.2.5 Conditions and procedures for termlnatnon of employment;
8.1.2.6 Conditions and procedures for grievances and appeals
8.1.2.7 An annual staff deveIopment plan which shall include: :
8.1.2.7.1 Provisions for onentatlon of paud_sfcaff student |nterns and
volunteers, Orientation shall mciude : ‘
8.1.2.7.1.1 Rewew of these standards,
8.1.2.7.1.2 Revrew of the program’s procedures and
personnel manuals
8.1.2.7.1.3 Review of DHSSS Pollcy Memorandum
#46; : e
8.1.2.7; 1.4 Review of section 5161 oletIe 16;
.;' 8.1.2.7.1 .5 Review of the Health Insurance Portability
e . and Accountability Act of 1996, 45 C.F.R.
;,ggz“Parts 160 and 164,
8.1‘;2.27.-] 6 Review of 42 C.F.R. Part 2.
: 2.7, 2 Prowsmns for contmumg education of staff;
3 Provmons for regularly scheduled clinical supervision which teach
, and enhance the clinical skills of staff including:
:7.3.1 Weekly team meetings led by the clinical supervisor during
' which assessments, recovery plans and progress toward
treatment goals are reviewed and staff receive direction
regarding clinical management of treatment issues.
8.1.2.7.3.2 Individual face-to-face sessions between the clinical
supervisor and staff to review cases, assess performance and
give feedback;
8.1.2.7.3.3 Individual, side-by- side sessions during which the
clinical supervisor attends clinical sessions conducted by
staff to assess performance, teach clinical skills and give
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9

feedback.
8.1.2.8 Maintenance and access to personnel files which shali  contain
employees' applications, credentials, job descriptions, and performance
appraisals, job titles, training, orientation, salary, staff statement of
confidentiality.
8.1.2.9 Work hours including hours of program operatlon shifts and overtime
compensation. ;i
8.1.2.10 Agency policies regarding compensation mcludlng
8.1.2.10.1 salary ranges, salary increases, and payroll procedures;
8.1.2.10.2 Use of personal automoblle for program actlv:tles
8.1.2.10.3 Reimbursement for work related expenses; °
8.1.2.10.4 Description of employee beneflts

Hours of Operation and Staff Coverage

9.1 The ACT team shall be avallable to provide treatment rehabllltatlon crisis
intervention, and support activities seven days per week. - This means:
9.1.1 Regularly operating and scheduimg staff to work two. eight-hour shifts with a
minimum of 2 staff on the second shlft provndmg servnces at least 12 hours per
day weekdays :

Byrlit

9.1.2 Regulariy operatlng and scheduling ACT staff to work one eight hour shift with a
minimum of 2 staff each weekend day and every holiday.
9.1 .37”§§Regu’|arly schedul'l.ng ACT staff on- call duty to provide crisis services and deliver
i services tfie’h"urs when staff is not working.

9.1.4 w.MentaI Health Professmnals on the ACT staff who are experienced in the program
and skilled in crisis-intervention procedures shall be on call to provide back-up to
on- caII staff and be available to respond to consumers by telephone or by going
out to see consumers who need face-to-face contact.

%.'
i

9.1.5 Regularly arranging for and providing psychiatric backup all hours the psychiatric
prescriber is not regularly scheduled to work. If availability of the ACT psychiatric
prescriber during all hours is not feasible, alternative psychiatric backup should be
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arranged (e.g., mental health center psychiatric prescriber, emergency room
psychiatric prescriber).

9.1.6 Through the use of the Daily Organizational Staff Meeting and the Daily Staff
Assignment Schedule, adjusting schedules and providing staff to carry out the
needed service activities in the evenings or on weekend days when necessary,

9,1.7 Regularly scheduling staff on-call duty to provide cns;s'serwces and deliver
services the hours when staff is not working. ACT, té'é“rfi staff who are experienced
in the program and skilled in crisis intervention _procedures shall be on call and

available to respond to consumers by telephone orin person.

9.1.8 The ACT team shall rotate cell phone/pager coverage 24/7 to be available for
face-to-face contacts and shall arrange with the crisis intervention service to be
notified when a face-to-face contact is needed é

10 Place of Treatment
10.1 Seventy-five : percent (75%) of service contacts shall be provided in nonoffice-based
or nonfac:llty~based settings The program will collect data regarding the percentage
of consumer contacts |n the communlty as part of its Quality Improvement (Ql) Plan

11

11.1 The ACT team shaII gconduct daily organizational staff meetings at regularly scheduled
times' per a schedule established by the team leader. These meetings will be
conductetj in accc_)’r,dance with the following procedures:

11.1.1 The ACT team shall maintain a written or computerized daily log. The daily log
provides:

11.1.1.1 A roster of the consumers served in the program, and for each
consumer,
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11.1.1.11 a brief documentation of any treatment or service contacts
that have occurred during the last 24 hours

11.1.1.1.2 a concise, behaviora! description of the consumer's status
that day.

11.1.2 The daily organizational staff meeting shall commence with a review of the daily
log to update staff on the treatment contacts which occurred the day before and to
provide a systematic means for the team to assess the day to-day progress and
status of all consumers. ;

.....

schedule is a written schedule of all treatment and servace contacts that staff must
carry out to fulfill the goals and objectlves‘ﬁ ) he consumer’s person centered
recovery plan. A
11.1.3.1 The team will mamtam a central f|Ie of all weekly consumer
schedules.
11.1.3.2 All weekly consumer schedules shall be made available to DSAMH
upon request S

P Byt
jE : LE 1
TR s.:¢

11.1.4 The ACT, team under the direction of the teamsieader, shall develop a daily staff
assugnment schedule from the centra! flie of all weekly consumer schedules. The
daily staff assu{;nment schedule is a wrltten timetable for all the consumer
:treatment and ser_vj;e contacts and ‘all indirect consumer work (e.g., medical

- record review meetmg with collaterals, job development, recovery planning, and
documentatlon) to be done on a given day, to be divided and shared by the staff

: working on that day

: ‘ii';‘ﬂ 1.4 The dally staff assignment schedule shall be made available to
DSAMH upon request,

11.1.5 The dally orgamzatnonal staff meeting will include a review by the shift manager of
all the work to be done that day as recorded on the daily staff assignment
schedule. During the meeting, the shift manager will assign and supervise staff to
carry out the treatment and service activities scheduled to occur that day, and the
shift manager will be responsible for assuring that all tasks are completed.
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11.1.6 During the daily organizational staff meeting, the ACT team shall also revise
person-centered recovery plans as needed, anticipate emergency and crisis
situations, and add service contacts to the daily staff assignment schedule per the
revised recovery plans.

planning meetings shall:

11.1.7.1 Convene at regularly schedule:d( times per a writfe;rr?or computerized
schedule maintained by the team leader. '

11.1.7.2 Occur and be scheduled when the consumer and the majorlty of the
team members can attend, including the psychiatric prescriber, team
feader, and all members of the TEAM. These meetings may also
mclude the consumer s famlly and/or natural supports if desired and

systematrcally revrew and:irrtegrate consumer information into a
holrstrc analysis and work with the consumer and TEAM to establish

,,,,,,,

11.1.7. 3 Occur wrth sufficient frequency and duration to make it possible for
" all staff to be familiar with each consumer and their goals and
asprratrons ‘and for. each consumer to become familiar with TEAM

_participate in the ongoing assessment and
1 reforn;iijietron of strengths, resources, and service needs/issues;
11.1. 7 3'2 to problem-solve treatment strategies and rehabilitation
T ;i options;
'“'z”_:U 1.7.33 to participate with the consumer and the TEAM in the
"~ development and the revision of the person-centered recovery
‘ plan;
11.1.7.3.4 to fully understand the recovery plan rationale in order to
carry out the plan with each consumer; and

11.1.7.3.5 updated, at a minimum, every 180 days.
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12 Staff Supervision

12.1 Each ACT team shall develop a written policy for clinical supervision of all staff
providing treatment, rehabilitation, and support services, The team leader and
psychiatric prescriber shall assume responsibility for supervising and directing all
staff activities. This supervision and direction shall consist )o_f:};_‘_ (

12.1.1 Individual, side-by-side sessions in which the supe‘r\ﬁﬁbr accompanies an
individua! staff member to meet with consumers in regularly scheduled or crisis
meetings to assess their performance, give feedback, and model alternative
treatment approaches; ;:E;“" ?'5_::52

12.1.2 Participation with team members ind fp[ganizaliﬁiqnal staff meetings and
regularly scheduled recovery planning meetings to review and assess staff
performance and provide staff direction regarding individual cases;

12.1.3 Regular meetings with individu_al staff to review théir'erk with consumers,
assess clinical performance, and give feedback; :

3] 1.3
i o

12.1.4 Regular reviews, critiques, and feedback of staff documentation (i.e., progress
notes, asséssments; recovery plans,:recovery plan reviews); and

Tigt
iz
3 : :
(G i i
¢ : i il: H

. Fitgeat
viiigd

: i, T
12.1.5 Written documentation of all clinical supervision provided to ACT team staff.

¥

13.1 initial Assessméhtz;‘An initial assessment and recovery plan shall be done the day of
the consumer's admission to ACT by the team leader or the psychiatric prescriber,
with participation by designated team members.

13.2 Compréh}epsive Asééssment: A complete bio-psycho-social (BPS) assessment shall be
complete‘éiﬁyggfi\:’iéntal Health Professional. A team member with training in specific
areas on th;e?fBPS may complete the section of the BPS that is their area of expertise
(e.g. the Chemical Dependency Specialist may complete the Substance Abuse history
section of the BPS). A comprehensive assessment shall be initiated and completed in
collaboration with the consumer within one month after a consumer's admission

according to the following requirements;
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13.2.1 . Psychiatric History, Mental Status, and Diagnosis: The psychiatric
prescriber is responsible for completing the psychiatric history, mental
status, and diagnosis assessment. (Using information derived from the
evaluation, a psychiatric prescriber or a clinical or counseling psychologist
shall make an accurate diagnosis listed in the American Psychiatric
Association's DSM 1V.} The psychiatric prescnber presents the assessment
findings at the first recovery planning meetmg includmg

13.2.1.1 extent and effects of drug and/or alcohol use_
13.2.1.2 medical, dental, and optometrlg needs ':4:;'*?

,,,,,,

13.2.1.3 adherence to and response to prescrlbed medlcafipsych:atrrc
treatment; ;_f?% Eai

13.2.1.4 recent key life events: '+ 7
13.2.1.5 vocational and educational functlonlng,
13.2.1.6 family history and social supports, ‘
13.2.1.7 current social funct:onlng, EHE
13.2.1.8 legal history to mclude current legal rssues
13.2.1.9financial status; - i :
13.2.1.10 conditions of dally Ilvmg,
13.2.1.07: hOUSIng :
13.2.1.12 recommendatlons for treatment to
13.201 13 mc!ude issues to be::

13.2. ] 13 1.5 addressed,

13.2.1. 132 “Referred; and

13 2 1. 13 3 deferred

commumty mclusion and mtegratlon as it relates to education and
employment The vocational specialist presents the assessment findings at
the first recovery planning.

13.2.3 "Soc,iafDeveiopment and Functioning: Included in this area is the
assessment of the individual's social and interpersonal inclusion and
integration within the community. The team member who does the
assessment presents the assessment findings at the first recovery planning

meeting.




CCCP ACT and ICM Standards | 2011

13.2.4 Activities of Daily Living (ADL): Included in this area is an assessment of
the individual’s abilities and barriers in meeting day to day activities for
independence. This includes but is not limited to:

13.2.4.1 Budgeting and money management

13.2.4.2 Shopping for graceries and other personal needs
13.2.4.3 Housekeeping .
13.2.4.4 Personal care (bathing, grooming etc.. )

13.2.4.5 Laundry
13.2.4.6 Other activities required for mdependent llvmg

Lt

13.2.5 Family Structure and Relationships: lnciuded in th:s area of the
assessment is the extent to whrch family, friends and other s supports are
currently involved in the consumers care and plans to include the family,
friends and other supports in treatment movmg forward. *

13.2.6 Strengths and Resources Members of the consumer s ACT team are
responsible for engaglng ‘the- ‘consumer in his or her own narrative in order
to identify individual strengths and resources as well as those within the
individual’s family, natural support network service system, and
communlty at Iarge These may include:

13; 2 6 l Personal skllls and talents
13.2.6.21p‘érsonal irtues and tralts
r113,2.6.3 mterperson‘ai skillss
R 6 4 mterpersona! and environmental resources:
13.2.6.5 cultural knowledge
13.2.6.6 knowfedge gained from struggling with adversity;
' . 13.2.6.7 knov\r[edge gained from occupational and parental roles;
13.2.6.8 spirituality and faith;
13.2.6.9 hopes, and dreams; AND
13.2.6,10 goals, and aspirations :

13.2.7 wh"i‘t'é the assessment process shall involve the input of most, if not all,
team members, the consumer's psychiatric prescriber, primary practitioner
and Team will assume responsibility for preparing the written narrative.

13.2.8 The Comprehensive Assessment shall be signed, and dated by:

13.2.8.1 the Team completing the evaluation:
13.2.8.2 the psychiatric prescriber AND




CCCP ACT and ICM Standards | 2011

13.2.8.3 the clinical supervisor.

13.3 After the assessment formulation is complete, the Team will solicit feedback from the
consumer and obtain their signature indicating their degree of participation in the
assessment process.

13.4 A copy of the signed assessment shall be made available to the consumer,

13.5 4. The Comprehensive Assessment will be completed W|thin the first
thirty days after admission.

14 Physical Examination

14.1 Clients who have not had a physical examination within one year (365 days) prior to
admission shall have a physical exammation wnhm 60 days following admission to
the program. I ‘

15 ] Person centered recovery p!ans will be developed through the following recovery
'igp!annlng pl’OCESS‘ ¥
+15.1.1 The person centered recovery plan shall be developed in coilaboration with

15.2 The consumers participation in the development of the recovery plan shall be
documented. The ACT team shall evaluate together with each consumer their:
15.2.1 needs,
15.2.2 abilities,
15.2.3 strengths, and
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15.2.4 preferences.
15.3 The recovery plan shall identify individual :
15.3.1 service needs;
15.3.2 strengths and capacities:
15.3.3 set specific and
15.3.4 measurable

15.3.4.1 long- and short-term goals for
15.3.4.1.1 each service need/issue;
15.3.5 establish the specific approaches and mterventlons necessary for the
consumer to meet hls/her goals, '

15.4  ACT team staff shali meet at regularly scheduled trmes for recovery planning
meetings. 2 S
15.4.1 At each recovery planmng meetmg the followmg staff should attend:
15.4.7.1 the team leader, o
15.4.1.2 the psychiatric prescriber
15.4.1.3 the pnmary practitioner,

15414Team :

5.4 ACTrstaff shall make every effort to ensure that the consumer and his/her

famﬂy and/or natural supports (lf desired by the consumer) are in

15.5 Teams are respon5|ble to prowde the necessary support to ensure the consumer is
actlvely involved in the development of;
15.5.1: treatment (recovery) and service goa!s and
15 5. i'l“offerlng of peer-based coaching and/or
1 5.5.12.2 skills training around his/her role in developing their own person
centered recovery plan.
15.5.3 With the permission of the consumer, ACT team staff shall also involve

pertinent agencies and members of the consumer's social network in the
formulation of recovery plans.
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15.5.4 Each consumer's recovery plan shall identify:
15.5.4.1 service needs/issues,
15.5.4.2 strengths/barriers to success, and
15.5.4.3 goals that are:
15.5.4.3.1 specific and
15.5.4.3.2 measurable.
15.5.5 The recovery plan must clearly specify:
15.5.5.1 The approaches and interventions necéSsi’ y for the consumer to
achieve the individual goals (.e., recovery) :
15.5.5.2 and identify who will carry out the approaches and interventions,
15.5.6 The following key areas should be addressed in every consumer s person-
centered recovery plan unless they are explored and desngnated as “not of
current interest” with signature by the consumer: '
15.5.6.1 psychiatric iliness ‘
15.5.6.2 symptom reductlon
15.5.6.3 housing; i
15.5.6. 4ADL g

15. 5 6 Gfamlty and social reiatlonshlps ,;5.:
15.5.6. 7physsca| health; and "

i _(e‘g communlty activities, empowerment, decision-making).
15.5.7 The consumer s.own words are reflected in the recovery plan.
15.6 The primary practmoner and the team, together with the consumer, will be
responSIbIe for. rewewmg and rewriting the treatment goals and plan whenever there
~is a major decnsion point- m the consumer's course of treatment (e.g., significant
.:change in consumer sand ;-

15.7 The prlmary practltloner shall prepare a summary (i.e., recovery plan review) which
thoroughly descrlbes in writing the consumer's and the team’s;
15.7.1 evaluatlon of his/ her progress/goal attainment,
15.7.2 The effectiveness of the interventions, and
15.7.3 the satisfaction with services since the last recovery plan.

15.8 The plan and review will be signed by:
15.8.1 the consumer,
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15.8.2 the primary practitioner,
15.8.3 Team,

15.8.4 the team leader, AND
15.8.5 the psychiatric prescriber

15.9 A copy of the signed person-centered plan is made available to the consumer.
.

~~~~~

and procedures incorporating the requirements outlined in this section.

17 Core ACT Services

17.1 Operating as a continuous treatment serv:ce ‘the ACT team shall have the:capablllty
to provide comprehensive treatment, rehabllrtataon and support services as a self-
contained service unit. :

17.2 Services shall minimally include‘the_following:

17.2.1 Service Coordination Each consumer W|l| be assigned a primary practitioner
who coordinates and momtors the actwut:es of the consumer’s team and
the greater ACT team.

17. 2 1 1 The prlmary respon5|b1l|ty of the prlmary practitioner is to work with

o 17 2 1 3 to offer optlons; e'nd chouces in the recovery plan,

315752,1:4t0 ensure that immediate changes are made as the consumer’s needs
change and

17.2.1.5t0 advocate for the consumer’s wishes, rights, and preferences.

17.2.1.61In most cases, the primary practitioner is also the first staff person

called on when the consumer is in crisis and is the primary support

person and educator to the individual consumer's family.

17.2. 1 ?Members of the team share these tasks with the primary practitioner

L and are responsible to perform the tasks when the primary

practitioner is not working.

17.2.1.8 Service coordination also includes coordination with community

resources, including consumer self-help and advocacy organizations
that promote recovery.
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17.2.1.9 Service coordination will incorporate and demonstrate basic recovery
values.

17.2.1.10  The consumer will have ownership of his or her own treatment.

17.2.1.10.1 The consumer will be expected to take the primary role in
person-centered recovery plan development,

17.2.1.10.2 play an active role in treatment decmon making, and
17.2.1.10.3 be allowed to take risks,
17.2.1.10.4 make mistakes and
17.2.1.10.5  learn from those mistakes.

17.3 Crisis Assessment and Intervention

seven days per week, i

17.3.2 These services will include telephone and face-to-face contact,

17.3.3 The Crisis Intervention and CAPES programs as approprlate will provide
adjunctive crisis mterventlon R

17.3.4 Whenever possible, a representatiVe from the ACT team will be present to
support the ACT consumer when externai crf5|s responders are involved
W|th the consumer ii’

17.3.5 Each ACT consumer will have an mdwlduallzed strengths based crisis plan.

17.4.1 Psychoeducatlon ‘regarding:
17.4.1.1 mental lllness and

. 17.4.1.2 the effects and side effects of prescribed medications, when

lltness and
17.4.3 Development of methods (internal, behavioral, or adaptive) to help lessen
the effects.
17.4.4 Psychotherapy, including
17.4.4.1 individual supportive therapy
17.4.4.2 Group Therapy
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17.4.4.3 and family therapy when appropriate.
17.4.5 Generous psychological support to consumers, both on a planned and as-
needed basis,to help them accomplish their personal goals, to cope with
the stressors of day-to-day living, and to recover.

17.5 Wellness Management and Recovery Services: Wellness Management and Recovery
Services shall include but not be limited to the followmg“ ‘ ‘

17.5.1 Defining and identifying the consumer's recovery goals within the
consumer’s frame of reference, A 3

17.5.2 Developing strategies for implementing and malntamlng the identified
recovery goals, : :

17.5.3 Psychoeducation and providing the consumer with practical information
about mental illness and the . consumer s dlagnoses and experiences with
mental illness, RTUNNT L ’

17.5.4 Skills training and practice:

17.5.4.1 in how to deveIOp social supports i
17.5.4.2 for the consume('“n understandmg and rmplementmg coping skills to
decrees stress k _ .
17.5.4.3 for the effective use of medlcatlon ae
17.5.4.4 defmmg relapse, ‘ i
17.5.4. 5 rdentlfying triggers for relapse and
17.5: 4, 65trategles for reducing relapses in frequency and severity.
17.5.4.7 for: :dentlfymg mdlwduahzed stressors and coping positively with
.. those ’t_reSsors -------
17. 5 8 for rdent[fylng and copmg with individualized symptoms.
17.5.4.9 practtce for: gettmg consumer’s needs met within the mental health
system mcIudmg empowerment and self-advocacy.
R . 17.5.4.10 ' Direct assistance with learning and practicing new skills as they
are developed

18 Medication Prescrlption Administration, Monitoring and Documentation
18.1 The ACT team psychiatric prescriber shall:
18.1.1 Establlsh an individual clinical relationship with each consumer
18.1.2 Assess each consumer's mental illness symptoms and provide verbal and
written information about mental illness.
18.1.3 review clinical information with the consumer, and as appropriate, with the
consumer’s family members or significant others.
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18.1.4 Make an accurate diagnosis based on direct observation, available collateral
information from the family and significant others and the comprehensive
assessment,

18.1.5 Provide a diagnostic work-up that will dictate an evidence-based
medication pathway that the psychiatric prescriber will follow.

18.1.6 Provide to the consumer, and as appropriate, the consumer s family and/or
significant others, practical education about edlcatlon including:

18.1.6.1 benefits and '

18.1.6.2 risks of various medication strategnes

18.1.6.3 The prescriber will obtain mformed consent from the consumer for all
medications prescribed. o o

18.1.6.4 In collaboration with the consumer assess, discuss and document the
consumer's mental illness symptoms and behavior in response to
medication and shall monitor and document medication side effects.

18.1.6.5 Provide psychotherapy, mcludmg

18.1.6.5.1 individua! supportive therapy,

18.1.6.5.2 psychoeducatlon Wl
18.1.6.5.3 symptom managernent and
18.1. 6 5 4 cogmtlve beha\noral approaches

side effects. }

18.2.1. Observatlons WI” be rewewed with the consumer.

18. 3 The ACT team program shaII establish medication policies and procedures which

ldentlfy processes to: :

§18 3.1 Record phy5|c|an orders

TS 3.2 Order medlcatlon

18. 3 3 Arrange for all consumer medications to be organized by the team and

..... mtegrated into consumers’ weekly schedules and daily staff assignment

schedules

18.3.4 Pr_ov:de security for medications (e.g., long-term injectable, daily, and
Ioanger term and

18.3.5 set aside a private designated area for set up of medications by the team's
nursing staff.

18.3.6 Administer medications per state law to team consumers.




CCCP ACT and ICM Standards | 2011

19 Co-Occurring Disorders Services
19.1 ACT consumers will receive a comprehensive chemical dependency assessment
during the first month of treatment. The assessment will include:
18.1.1 Substance use history.
19.1.2 Parental and familial substance use summary.
19.1.3 Effects/imACT of substance use.
19.1.4 Functional assessment: role played by substances in the consumer’s life.
19.1.5 Consumer strengths. g *;;:::.
19.1.6 Social support network (including both users and pet‘)‘ple who support
recovery) ST v

19.1.7 Consumer’s self-identified goals and aspiratlons :
19.1.8 ACT consumers will receive mtegrated treatment that is:
19.1.9 nonconfrontational, S ¥
19.1.10 considers interactions of mentaliillness and substance abuse and
19.1.11 has consumer-determined goals. .

19.2 Treatment will follow a harm reductlon model. Thls shaII mclude but is not limited to:
19.2.1 individual and Lo
19.2.2 group interventions in: -:-5:23f‘=w
19.2.3 Developing motivation for decreasmg us
19.2.4 Developmg skills to minimize use,
19.2.5 recognltlon of negatlve consequences of use, and

19 4 Actlve treatment (e 9., cognltlve skills training, communlty reinforcement)
19.5 Contmuous relapse prevention (e. g., trigger identification, building relapse
prevention action _p[ans)
E
20 Education Servaces
20.1 Supported Educanon Supported education related services are for ACT consumers
whose hlgh school, college or vocational education could not start or was
interrupted. Services provide support;
20.1.1 to enrolling and participating in educational activities.
20.1.2 Strengths-based assessment of educational interests, abilities and history,
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20.1.3 Pre-admission counseling to determine which school and/or type of
educational opportunities may be available.

20.1.4 If, indicated referral to GED classes and testing.

20.1.5 Assistance with completion of applications and financial aid forms.

20.1.6 Help with registration.

20.1.7 Orientation to campus buildings and school services.

20.1.8 Assessment of learning style and study skills. '

20.1.9 Early identification and intervention with academrc difficulties.

20.1.10 Linking with academic supports such as tutorlng'and learning resources.

20.1.11 Assistance with time management and schoolwork deadlines.

20.1.12 Supportive counseling. o ‘ R

20.1.13 Information regarding dlsclosmg mental illness,

20.1.14 Advocating with faculty for reasonable accommodations.

21 Vocational Services: ' i
21.1 Vocational Services include work—related services to help consumers value, find, and
maintain meaningful employment in community- based job sites as well as job
development and coordination WIth empfoyers Servuces include but are not limited
to: f‘ ' ;

>>>>>

‘in commumtyvbased jobs. :

21.1.2 Assessment of the effect of the consumer s mental illness on employment
. with |dent|f|catlon of spemfrc behaviors that help and hinder the
conSumer s work performance and

21.1.21 development of interventions to reduce or eliminate any hindering

behawors and find effective job accommodations.

,21 1.3 Job develbpment activities.

21 ] 4 Development of an ongoing employment rehabilitation plan to help each

0 consumer establish the skills necessary to find and maintain a job
21.1. 5 ln_diyrduaf supportive therapy to assist consumers to identify and cope with
the’ symptoms of mental iliness that may interfere with their work
performance
21.1.6 Development of a consumer-driven, on-the-job or work-related crisis
intervention plan.
21.1.6.1 The plan will identify early triggers for intervention.
21.1.7 Provision of on-the-job or work-related crisis intervention services,
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21.1.8 Work-related supportive services, such as assistance with resume
development, job application preparation, interview support, grooming and
personal hygiene, securing of appropriate clothing, wake-up calls, and
transportation.

22 Activities of Daily Living Services ;j"_"' ‘
22.1 These include services to support activities of daily I|V|ng in commun:ty based
settings include: :
22.1.1 individualized assessment, .
22.1.2 problem solving, G
22.1.3 skills training/practice,
22.1.4 sufficient side-by-side assustance and support, v
22.1.5 modeling, o R .?f?;} 5
22.1.6 ongoing supervision (e.g. prompts a551 ﬁments monltorlng,
encouragement), :
22.1.7 environmental adaptatrons to assist consum
required to: i,
22.1.7.1 Find housing whlch is safe
22.1.7.2 good quality, and :
22.1.7.3, affordable (e.g., apartment huntmg, finding a roommate; landlord

negotlatlons cleanmg, furnlshmg, and decoratlng

to gain or use th skills

‘ 9§rocery shopping, and
laundry
o 22.1.7. 6Carry out personal hygiene and grooming tasks, as needed
}3_22 1.7.7 Develop or improve money-management skills
22.1.7.8 Use available transportation
22.1. 7 9 Have and effectively use a personal physician and dentist

23 Social and Comn:ﬁunity Integration Skills Training

23.1 Social and community integration skills training serve to support social/interpersonal
relationships and leisure-time skill training and include:
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23.1.1 supportive individual therapy (e.g., problem solving, role-playing,
modeling, and support);

23.1.2 social-skill teaching and assertiveness training;

23.1.3 planning, structuring, and prompting of social and leisure-time activities:

23.1.4 side-by-side support and ¢oaching;

23.1.5 organizing individual and group social and recreational activities to
structure consumers' time, increase their social experiences, and provide
them with opportunities to practice social Skl”S and receive feedback and
support required to: e

23.1.5.1 Improve communication skills, | " i KN

23.1.5.2 develop assertiveness, and mcrease self—esteem as necessary

23.1.5.3 increase social expenencesz and ' R s

23.1.5.4 where appropriate, develop meanlngful personal relat[ons‘hlps

23.1.5.5 Plan appropriate and productzve use of leisure time

23.1.5.6 Relate to landlords, neighbors, and others effectively

23.1.5.7 Familiarize themselves with available social and recreational
opportunities

23.1.5.8 and increase their use of 'S'u'éh opportumties

24 Peer Support Services !

24.1 These mcfu e services to_valldate consﬂmers experiences and to guide and
encourage consumers to take responsibility for and actively participate in their own
recovery, as well as serwces to help consumers identify, understand, and combat
stigma and dlscrlmlnatfon ‘against mental iliness and develop strategies to reduce
consumers’ self—lmposed stlgma Peer Support and Weliness Recovery Services

: mclude -

24 1. 1.1 Promote self-determination and

2'Encourage and reinforce choice and decision making.

24.1.2 Introduction and referral to consumer self-help programs and advocacy
ofganizations that promote recovery.

24,2 The Peer Specialist will serve as a consultant to the ACT team to support a culture of
recovery in which each consumer’s point of view and preferences are recognized,
understood, respected and integrated into treatment, rehabilitation, support, and
community activities.
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25 Support Services
25.1 Support services, to include skills training for accessing services, and providing
direct assistance when necessary, to ensure that consumers obtain the basic
necessities of daily iife, including but not necessarily I|m|ted to
25.1.1 Medical and dental services
25.1.2 Safe, clean, affordable housing %
25.1.3 Financial support and/or benefits counselmg"!(e g., 351, SSDI, Food Stamps,
Section 8, Vocational Rehabilitation, Home Energy Assustance)
25.1.4 Social service : :
25.1.5 Transportation g
25.1.6 Legal advocacy and representatic}h

26 Family and Natural Supports’ Psycheducation and Suj

26.1 Services provided under this category to consumers’ aamllles and other major
supports with consumer agreeme or| i
26.1.1 Individualized psychoeducafiéh about the consumer s illness and the role
of the family in the therapeutlc process
26.1.2 Indw:duahzed psychoeducatlon about the consumer's illness and the role
of other 5|gmflcant people in the therapeutic process
26.1.3; ‘Family intervention to restore contact, resolve conflict, and maintain
relatronshlps with family and or other significant people
26 l 4 Ongomg communlcatied‘h and collaboration, face-to-face and by telephone,
S between the ACT team and the family

,,,,,

26.1.5 IntrodUCtlon and referral to family self-help programs and advocacy

nnnnn

,»o'v" PrEiYEY

orgamzatlons that promote recovery
25__1 6 Ass:stancea to cohsumers with their children, including individual supportive
counsehng parenting training, and service coordination but not limited to:

26 1. 6 1 Serwces to help consumers throughout pregnancy and the birth of a
chlld

26.1 6 2 Services to fulfill parenting responsibilities and coordinating services
for the child

26.1.6.3 Services to restore relationships with children who are not in the
consumer’s custody

27 ORGANIZATIONAL STANDARDS
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27.1 Community Support Services programs shall establish an advisory committee, which
meets at least quarterly and includes peers, program consumers and family members
of consumers within its membership. The function of the advisory committee shall be
to ensure consumer and family participation in the process of setting and evaluating
the values, mission, goals, objectives and service strategies. of the program and to
assist the program in representing its interest to the communify in which it operates,

27.2 The advisory committee shall have written rules governing the conduct of its
meetings which specify at least the following: R
27.2.1 its authority and duties; A
27.2.2 Officers and committees;
27.2.3 Criteria, types, methods of m
27.2.4 Frequency of meetings:
27.2.5 Attendance requirements, *»’ggé?; ,
27.2.6 Minutes of advisorygEOmmittee meetings"sha!! be kept and shall include the
following: DA : ‘
27.2.6.1 Date of meeting; RN
27.2.6.2 Attendance; iy L
27.2.6.3 Topics discussed; i

' i N £
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27.2.6.4 Decisions reached;
27.2.6.5 Actions planned or taken;
27.2.6.6 Reports from sub-committees,

27.3 The facility(ies) within which the CCCP operates shall meet the followmg criteria:

27.3.1 They shall maintain a Certificate of Occupancy,

27.3.2 They shall meet all applicable fire and life safety codes;

27.3.3 They shall be maintained in a clean and safe conditlon

27.3.4 They shall provide rest rooms mamtalned in a clean. and safe condition
available to consumers, visitors and staff ‘

27.3.5 They shall be accessible to the: consumer served:

27.3.6 They shall provide a smoke free e‘ny;ironment.

28 . Consumer Rights and Grievance Procedures
28.1 ACT teams shall be knowledgeabie about and famlllar w1th consumer rights including
the rights to: “xligf-f - g

28.1.1 Confidentiality s
28.1.2 Informed consent to med:catlon and;treatment
28.1.3 Treatment ‘with respect and dlgnlty _f.?‘“
28.1.4 Pkri‘okr‘npt adequate and approprlate treatment
28.1.5: Treatment which is under the least restrictive conditions
28.1.6 Nondlscrlmmatlon
1228 1.7 .Control of own money

128.1.8 VOIce or file' gnevances or complalnts

i 328 2.1 GnevanCeor complamt procedures under:
28.2.1.1 Medicald
28 2.1.2 Amerlcans with Disabilities Act
28.2. l }Protectlon and Advocacy for Mentally Il Individuals
28.3 ACT team§ shall be prepared and provide consumers with appropriate information
referral to the Protection and Advocacy agency and other advocacy groups.

28.4 ACT teams should ensure that consumers receive from all staff members, effective

understandable and respectful care that is provided in a manner compatible with
their cultural, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, faith beliefs, health
beliefs and practices.
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28.5 ACT teams will also ensure that consumers receive services in their preferred
language and will make arrangements for interpreter services.

29 ADMINISTRATIVE STANDARDS

29.1 Consumer Records n
29.1.1 There shall be a treatment record for =éa(;h: consumer that includes
sufficient documentation of assessments‘if’fecoiféry, plans and treatment to
Jjustify Medicaid participation and to. perr'rsfit a clini'c'iar;li_rklot familiar with the

29.2 There shall be a designated consumer record manag

the maintenance and security of consumer records. '

t;‘.jl_’_\{vho shall be réé‘ﬁéﬁsible for

29.3 The record keeping format arii{?system for purging shall provide for consistency,
facilitate information retrieval and shall be approved by the Division.

29.4 Consumer treatment records shall be kept confidential and safe-guarded in a
manner consistent with the requiréi}nenﬁs of the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act on 1996, 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, and 42 C.F.R Part 2
governing thke.i:'confidiézh‘t'iality of aicohol and drug patient records (if applicable).

29.5 The active ::c6ﬁ$qmer re@ord shall contain the following:

;consumer

FasT] 3

';29.5.2::A'r:1'fijp7to—datg:face sheet;
- 29.5.3 Cdﬁééﬁp to tréaitjr_ﬁent signed by the consumer:
29.5.4 Conseént to any oceasion of release of information
*272‘9.’5.5 Docume:ri'ftation that the consumer has been informed of his/her rights:
;‘29_.:5;6 Documehfation that the consumer has been provided with information
'”Eié;rggardiinéj'the process by which grievances can be addressed;
29.5.7 'Cgi;‘)_ies;%bf any grievances filed by the consumer:;
29.5.8 Rébbrts from all examinations, tests and clinical consults;
29.5.9 Hospital discharge summaries;
29.5.10 Comprehensive medical psychosocial evaluation;
29.5.11 Comprehensive recovery plan/recovery plan updates:
29.5.12 Crisis intervention plan and updates;

29.5.13 Summary of monthly consumer activity;
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29.5.14 Progress notes;

29.5.15 Documentation of clinical supervision:
29.5.16 Medication records;

29.5.17 Discharge documentation.

30 Procedure Manual it

30.1 The Community Support Services program shall maintain’ a wrltten procedure manual
for its staff. A mechanism shall be in place to ensure that the procedure manual is
updated continuously and that the staff of the' program is not:fled promptly of
changes. The manual shall include:

30.1.1 A statement of the program's values mission and objectives;-
30.1.2 Referral policies and procedures that faalltate consumer referral;

30.1.3 Detailed instructions for assessment, serwce planning and documentation
procedures; :

30.1.4 Policies and procedures for medication management In compliance with all
applicable rules, regulatlons and requlrements of the Delaware Board of
Medical Practice, the Delaware Board of Nursmg and the Delaware Board of
Pharmacy (if applicable) to mclude pollcnes and procedures for:

30.1.4.1 Prescrlbmg medlcatlon‘ ‘
30.1.4. 2 Storage of medication; -

30.1.4; 3 Handlmg of medlcatlon
30.1.4.4 Dlstrrbutlon of medlcatlon

‘*}30 ] 5 Policies and procedures for handling on-call responsibilities and consumer
e emergencres

30.1.6 Detailed instructions for application to and communication with entitlement
authorlties

30.1.7 Pghc:es and procedures for sharing of information about consumers with
family members or others;

30.1.8 Policies and procedures regarding committing and handling financial
resources of the program;

30.1.9 Policies and procedures regarding the management of consumer's funds
for whom the program has been designated payee;
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30.1.10 Policies and procedures for the receipt, consideration and resolution of
consumer complaints and/or grievances regarding treatment decisions and
practices or other program activities.

30.1.11 Other policies and procedures as maybe promulgated or required by the
Division and/or DHSS/DMAP.

31 Personnel Management ¥
31.1 The Community Support Services Programs or parent OFgénlzatlon shall maintain an
up-to-date Personne! Policies and Procedures Manual and: make it readily available
for reference by the program staff. The Manual Wlll rnclude
31.1.1 Policies and procedures regardmg e:;ual employment opportumty and
affirmative action to include comphance with: thin
31.1.1.1 The Americans with Disabilities Act and the Vocatlonal Rehabllltauon
Act of 1973, Sections 503 and 504 prohlbltmg discrimination against
the handicapped;
31.1.1.2 Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibiting discrimination on
the basis of race, color creed sex or natlonal origin;

color, creed, sex, sexual orlentatlon and national origin;
31.1. 4Age dlscrimlnatlon ACt of 1975 prohlbltmg discrimination based on

L veterans :
3112 Pollaes and procedures for mtervuews and selection of candidates including
L verlﬁcatlon of credentlals and references;
3103 Policies and procedures for employee performance appraisal;
::5:31_.1 .4 A code of eth|cs
31':1 5 COndIthl’IS and procedures for termination of employment;

31.1. 6 COHdItIOI‘tS and procedures for grievances and appeals;

<<<<<

31.1.7 An annual staff development plan which shall include:
;n:
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31.1.7.1 Provisions for orientation of paid staff, student interns and volunteers.
Orientation shall inciude:

31.1.7.1.1 Review of these standards:
31.1.7.1.2 Review of the program’s procedures and personnel
manuals;

31.1.7.1.3 Review of DHSSS Policy Memorandum #46;

31.1.7.1.4 Review of section 5161 of Title'16; -

31.1.7.1.5 Review of the Health lnsurance ‘Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, 45 C F.R. Parts 160 and 164;

31.1.7.1.6 Review of 42 C.F.R. Part 2,

31.1.7.2 Provisions for continuing education of staff;
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_;;d'eli\iv'a;irgsi(:f
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31.6

31.1.7.3 Provisions for regularly scheduled, face-to-face clinical supervision
which teach and enhance the clinical skills of staff including:
31.1.7.3.1 Individual face-to-face sessions between the clinical
supervisor and staff to review cases, assess performance and
give feedback;
31.1.7.3.2 Individual, side-by- side sessions during which the clinical
supervisor attends clinical sessionsﬁclbnducted by staff to assess
performance, teach clinical skills and give feedback.
31.1.7.4 Maintenance and access to personnel files which shall contain
employees’ applications, credentlals, job descriptions, and
performance appraisals, job titles, ’t"r'aining, orientation, salary, staff
statement of confidentiaﬁl,it%}f."' i)
31.1.7.5Work hours including hdufé‘,;”f)‘f:progra:ﬁ};pperation, shifts and overtime
compensation. i,
31.1.7.6 Agency policies regarding compeﬁé{ation including:
31.1.7.6.1 salary ranges, salary incrééses, and payroll procedures:
31.1.7.7 Use of personal éufoi‘hbbile for program activities:
31.1.7.8 Reimbursement for_‘work rélate_d_ expenses:
31.1.7.910.3.1.10.4 Description of éhﬁplo'yeg benefits,

i

ACT teams:shfi)'uld ifhpgément strategiéj_s to recruit, retain, and promote a diverse

staff thatfﬁreutéepresenta'tive of the derhiigraphic characteristics of the service area.

ACT teams sho‘u!dgeensu_r_éfthatustaff at allievels and across all disciplines receives
L O T L Lo . .

oq:going;ggycatioh-.anq trammgjqfchiturally and linguistically appropriate service

EEEE PR RS SRS S

RNt

ACT teams must offer and provide language assistance services, including bilingual

staff and interpreter services, at no cost to each consumer with limited English-

prbficiency at all points of contact, in a timely manner during all hours of operation.
ACT teams must provide to consumers in their preferred language both verbal offers
and wri'tte_nnotiche_s;'informing them of their right to receive language assistance
services, i

ACT teams fh‘ﬁst assure the competence of language assistance provided to limited
English—prdficient consumers by interpreters and bilingual staff. Family and friends
should not be used to provide interpretation services (except by request of the
consumer),

ACT teams should ensure that staff at all levels and across disciplines receives
ongoing education and training in appropriate services to members of the lesbian,
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gay, bisexual, transgendered, queer/queer questioning/identified, and two spirit
people communities (LGBTQ/2SP).

32 Performance improvement Program
32.1 The Community Support Services Programs shall prepare an annual performance
improvement plan, which shall be subject to approval by the ~Division. A clinician
employed by the program or parent organization shall be de5|gnated performance
improvement coordinator. The provider shall establlsh the following performance
improvement mechanisms which shall be carried out in at’:‘t":or"dance with the
performance improvement plan: M ‘
32.1.1 A statement of the program's ObJECtIVeS “The obJectlves shall relate directly
to the program's consumers or target population, :
32.1.2 Measurable criteria shall be applled in cletermlmng whether ornot the
stated objectives are achieved.

32.1.3 Methods for documentmg achievements related to the program's stated
objectives, i

32.1.4 Methods for assessing

the ACT team shall have a system for regular review that is designed to
evaluate the: appropnateness of admissions to the program, treatment or

serwce plans, dlscharge practlces and other factors that may contribute to
the effectlve use of the program s resources.
!532 l 6 The ACT team shall marntaln performance improvement and program

evaluatlon pohc:es and procedures that include:

32.1.6.1° a concurrent utrlrzataon review process;

32.1.6.2 a retrospectlve performance improvement review process;
v32 1.6.3a process for clinical care evaluatlon studles and

standards and ACT Fidelity as prescribed by The Division,

32.2 The CCCP should ensure that data on the individual consumer’s race, ethnicity, and
spoken and written language are collected in health records, integrated into the
organization’s management information systems, and be periodically updated.

32.3 The CCCP should develop participatory, collaborative partnerships with communities
and utilize a variety of formal and informal mechanisms to facilitate community and
consumer involvement in designing and implementing culturally aware activities.
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33 WAIVER OF PROVISIONS
33.1 The Division Director of DSAMH or her/his designee, may issue a waiver of any of the
discretionary requirements of these certification standards upon the good-cause-
shown request of a program seeking certification/re-certification. Such request for a
waiver must demonstrate that the waiver will not in any substantial or material
manner have a deleterious effect on the essential quality of services to the consumer
and offer an alternative procedure for the standard thit waiver is requested for.
33.2 Waivers issued by the Director or her/his designee shall be in writing and shall
specify the maximum duration of the waiver's_i_effect.:__ * -
33.3 Any waiver issued by the Director or her/hj;fdésighee may be reéci_nded at any time
at the discretion of the Director and wil!gbéffescinded if deleterious ef
reris evidenced.

ghiTiiiia,
siitied
4 j

essential quality of service to the consiim s oE
33.3.1 Extensions and/or renewals of any waiver shall be made at the Director's
Gini
discretion. k

i




SECTION 4 — ASAM INFORMATION
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12-12-2011 ASAM CLINICAL PLACEMENT SUMMARY
{Section 1)

Demographics and Status Request Today’s Date:
Assessor/Therapist (print): Phone/ext.: FAX #

Signature of Assessor/Therapist:

Consumer Last name (print); First: MI.;
SS#: DOB: Age:

Gender Expression: (M) _® Marital Status: Ethnicity:

TASC Client: Yes___No___ Unknown _ Probation Officer:

MCI # (if known) Source and Amount of Income:

Medicaid #: Medicare # Other Insurance (specify):

Current Residence (type):
Indicate whether the applicant lives in a private residence (supervised or unsupervised), Adult Foster Care, Boarding House,
Group Setting (supervised or supervised), psychiatric inpatient facility (provide name), Nursing Home (specify), other
Institutional Setting (specify), homeless or other (explain)

Current Street Address:

City: State; Zip Code:

Home Phone; Work Phone: Cell Phone;

Person to Contact in Case of an Emergency:

Address:

Telephone Number: Relationship:

Primary Language: ( ) English { ) Spanish ( ) American Sign Language ( ) Other:

Does the enrollee have a representative payee? _ (no) (yes/specify)
Date of most recent Assessment or Assessment Update completién (if applicable): Appeal: Yes_ No_
Status Request: ADMISSION _ LOC Requested:

CONTINUED STAY : Specify number of days requested at current LOC:
DISCHARGE (No more treatment needed.)

REFERRAL (Treatment to be provided by a different program)

TRANSFER (Treatment to be provided at the same program at a different intensity)
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12-12-2011 ASAM CLINICAL PLACEMENT SUMMARY
(Section 2) Current Diagnoses and Symptoms

Axis I: Clinical Disorder
Code: Diagnosis:
Code: Diagnosis:
Code: Diagnosis:
Describe the clinical symptoms and conditions that justify the diagnosis indicated.

Axis II: Personality Disorders/Mental Retardation
Code: Diagnosis:
Code: Diagnosis:
Code: Diagnosis:
Please describe the clinical symptoms and conditions that justify the diagnosis indicated.

Axis III: General Medical Conditions (ICD-9-CM name) Use additional space if needed.
Code: Diagnosis:
Code: Diagnosis:
Code: Diagnosis:
Code: Diagnosis:
Code: Diagnosis:
Please describe the clinical symptoms and conditions that justify the diagnosis indicated.

Axis IV: Psychosocial and Environmenta] Problems (Check and Describe):
() Problems with primary support group (specify)
() Problems related to the social environment (specify)
() Educational problems (specify and indicate the highest grade completed)
( ) Occupational problems (specify)
( } Housing problems (specify)
() Economic problems (specify)
() Problems with access to health care (specify)
() Problems related to interaction with the tegal system/crime (specify)
() History of trauma (specify)
{ } Other psychosocial and environmental problems (specify)

Axis V: Global Assessment of Functioning Scale:

Current: Highest level in the past year;

Diagnostician: Psychiatrist or other authorized person who performed the evaluation and formulated the
diagnosis:

(Print Name)

(Signature)
Phone #: Date of Diagnosis:
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12-12-2011 ASAM CLINICAL PLACEMENT SUMMARY

(Section 3)
A. What is the most important thing vou want or made you decide to call or come in for " help right now?
What is most important to you that you would like help with right now?

B. Immediate Need Profile
Consider cach dimension and with Just sufficient data to assess immediate needs, checks “yes” or “no” for the following questions:

1. Acute Intoxication and/or Withdrawal Potential

{a) Past history of serious withdrawal, life-threatening symptoms or seizures during withdrawal? e.g., need for IV therapy;
hospitalization for seizure control; psychosis with DT’s; medication management with close nurse monitoring and medical
management? _ No___Yes; (b) Currently having severe, life-threatening and/or similar withdrawal symptoms? __ No__ Yes

2. Biomedical Conditions/Complications

Any current severe physical health problems? e.g., bleeding from mouth or rectum in past 24 hours; recent, unstable hypertension;
recent, severe pain in chest, abdomen, head; significant problems in balance, gait, sensory or motor abilities not related to intoxication,
__No__ Yes

3. Emotional/Behavioral/Cognitive Conditions/Complications

() Imminent danger of harming self or someone else? €.g., suicidal ideation with intent, plan and means to succeed; homicidal or
violent ideation, impulses and uncertainty about ability to control impulses, with means to act on.__ No__ Yes; (b) Unable to
function in activities of daily living, care for self with imminent, dangerous consequences? e.g., unable to bath, feed, groom and care
for self due to psychosis, organicity or uncontrolled intoxication with threat of imminent safety to self, others as regards death or
severe injury __ No__ Yes

4. Readiness to Change

(a) Does client appear to need alcohol or other drug treatment/recovery and/or mental health treatment, but ambivalent or feels it
unnecessary? e.g., severe addiction, but client feels controlled use still OK; psychotic, but blames a conspiracy __ No___ Yes;
(b) Client has been coerced, mandated or required to have assessment and/or treatment by mental health court or criminal justice
system, health or social services, work/school, or family/significant other? _ No_ Yes

3. Relapse/Continued Use/Continued Problem Potential

(a) Is client currently under the influence and/or acutely psychotic, manic, suicidal? _ No___ Yes; (b)Is client likely to continue to
use or have active, acute symptoms in an imminently dangerous manner, without immediate containment? (c) s client’s most
troubling, presenting problem(s) that brings the client for assessment, dangerous to self or others? (See examples above in dimensions

I,2and3) __ No Yes

6. Recovery Environment
Are there any dangerous family, sig. others, living/work/school situations threatening client’s safety, immediate well-being, and/or
sobriety? e.g., living with a drug dealer; physically abused by partner or significant other; homeless in freezing temperatures

No__ Yes

IMPORTANT

*  Yes to questions 1a and 1b; or 1b alone; 2 and/or 3 requires that the caller/client immediately receive medical or psychiatric care for
evaluation of need for acute, inpatient care. TAKE IMMEDIATE ACTION. STOP THE ASSESSMENT HERE.

*  Yes to questions 4a and/or 4b alone, requires caller/client to be seen for assessment within 48 hrs, and preferably earlier, for
motivational strategies, unless patient imminently likely to walk out and needs a more structured intervention.

*  Yes to question 5a alone, assess further for need for immediate intervention e.g., taking keys of car away; having a relative/friend pick
client up if severely intoxicated and unsafe; evaluate need for immediate psychiatric intervention.

*  Yes to questions Sb, Sc and/or 6, without any Yes in questions 1, 2 and/or 3, requires that the caller/client be referred to a safe or
supervised environment e.g., shelter, alternative safe living environment, or residential or sub-acute care setting depending on level of
severity and impulsivity,

.
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12-12-2011 ASAM CLINICAL PLACEMENT SUMMARY

C. ASAM Dimensions: Provide a brief narrative for each dimension that explains your Rating of Severity/Function. Focus on
brief relevant history information and relevant here and now information. CHECK ALL ITEMS THAT APPLY

Dimension 1: Acute Intoxication and/or Withdrawal Potential - Substance Use: Include Amount,

Duration and Last Use for each substance (except “no known risk,” explain any item checked)
No known risk

Adequate ability to tolerate/cope with intoxication or withdrawal symptoms

Some difficulty tolerating/coping with intoxication or withdrawal discomfort

Past history of complicated withdrawali needing medical intervention

Current potential for complicated withdrawal needing medical intervention

Use is current and complicated withdrawal needing medical intervention is imminent

ooocQo

Dimension 2: Biomedical conditions/complications (except “no known,” explain any item checked)
0 No known biomedical conditions/complications

O Current physical illnesses exist, and are:  stable unstable acute (circle as appropriate)

Q  There is a history of chronic conditions

Dimension 3: Emotional/Behavioral/Cognitive Conditions or Complications:
SUICIDALITY (except “no history,” explain any item checked)

No history or current suicidal ideation

Has frequent passive thoughts of being better off dead

Exhibits suicidal ideation without a plan

Exhibits suicidal ideation with a plan

Has recently attempted suicide or made credible threats with a plan and means

Has a history of suicidal gestures or threats

DCo0cOoOcCco

SELF-CONTROL/IMPULSIVITY (except “no history,” explain any item checked)

O  Has no history of self-control/impulsivity issues

Q  Is involved with the judicial or legal system

O Has been arrested for alcohol- or drug-related crimes, or for use/possession/distribution of drugs, for minor theft, destruction of
property, vagrancy/loitering, disturbing the peace, or public intoxication within the past 6 months

Q  Currently experiencing problems related to gambling

9 Has a history of arrests for illegal or unsafe activities




12-12-2011 ASAM CLINICAL PLACEMENT SUMMARY

DANGEROQUSNESS (except “no known history,” explain any item checked)

Has no known history of dangerousness

Lacks impulse control/control of violent behavior

Has a history of violent or dangerous social behavior

Exhibits inappropriate or dangerous social behavior dangerous to others, e.g. physical or sexual assault, fire setting
Engages in behavior dangerous to himselfherself

Engages in behavior dangerous to property

Engages in behavior that leads to victimization

oouooco

SELF-CARE (except “no self-care deficits,” explain any item checked)

Q No self-care deficits noted

O Does not seek appropriate treatment/supportive services without assistance or requires significant oversight to do so; needs
services to prevent relapse

Requires assistance in basic life and survival skills (i.e. locating food, finding shelter)

Requires assistance in basic hygicne, grooming and care of personal environment

Engages in impulsive, illegal or reckless behavior

Experiences frequent crisis contacts ( (number) within ___ (number) months)

Experiences frequent detoxification admissions { (number) within ____ (number) months

oooop

PSYCHIATRIC/EMOTIONAL HEALTH (except “does not exhibit signs/symptoms,” explain any item checked)
Does not exhibit signs/symptoms of psychiatric or emotional illness

Psychiatric symptoms are wel] managed with medication/treatment

Symptoms persist in spite of medication adherence

Psychiatric symptoms and signs are present and debilitating

Experiences delusions and/or hallucinations which interfere with client’s ability to function

Acute or severe psychiatric symptoms are present which seriously impair client’s ability to function

Currently taking medications for these symptoms (list below)

Medication adherence is inconsistent

Experiences mood abnormality (depression, mania)

Is frequently very anxious or tense

Is unable to appropriately express emotions

Experiences hopelessness, apathy, lack of interest in life

Experiences physical symptoms related to their psychiatric illness or addiction (e.g. sleeplessness, stomach aches)
Lacks any sense of emotional well-being

000000000 CO0 D




12-12-2011 ASAM CLINICAL PLACEMENT SUMMARY

Current medications and dosages. You may attach a copy of your Medication Administration Record (MAR) or
order sheet if it is legible. '
Medication Dosage Effectiveness

1.

2.
3

4,

5.

When available attach the most recent laboratory tests results, including tests for therapeutic drug levels,
alcohol/drug screens, Complete Blood Count (CBC), Complete Metabolic Profile (CMP), Thyroid Stimulating
Hormone (TSH) and any other diagnostic studies.

Other Comments about medications and dosage:

Dimension 4: Readiness to Change:

UNDERSTANDING OF ILLNESS AND RECOVERY (explain any item checked)

Q  Exhibits understanding of the nature of his/her mental health and/or substance use illness and/or physical health and its effects

U Exhibits some understanding of the nature of his/her mental health and/or substance use illness and/or physical health and its
effects

O  Little or no understanding of the nature of his/her mental health and/or substance use illness and/or physical health and its effects

Q  Limited understanding of the nature of his/her mental health and/or substance use illness and/or physical health and its effects

O Does not have an understanding of his/her illness(es) and recovery

DESIRE TO CHANGE (explain any item checked)

States desire to change

Indicates some desire to change

Limited desire or commitment to change

Doesn’t understand the need to change

Relates to treatment with some difficulty and establishes few, if any trusting relationships
Does not use available resources independently or only in cases of extreme need

Does not have a commitment to recovery

O0oocoo




12-12-2011 ASAM CLINICAL PLACEMENT SUMMARY

Dimension 5: Relapse, Continued Use, Continued Problem Potential:

CURRENT AND PREVIOUS TREATMENT HISTORY AND RESPONSE (explain any item checked)

Takes medication with good response/complete remission of symptoms

Takes medications (with or without assistance) as prescribed with continued symptoms/partial remission of Symptoms
Not using but no behavioral changes to support tecovery

Not taking prescribed medications with a history of violence

Previous or current treatment has not achieved remission of symptoms

Previous treatment exposures have been marked by minimal effort or motivation and no significant success or recovery
period was achieved

Attempts to maintain treatment gains have had limited success

Has had extensive and intensive treatment

Has had some treatment

This is the first treatment

Court ordered to treatment __ (civil) ____(criminal)

UODOoOoDCo

Oo0oop

Treatment Service history. Include all fnpatient and outpatient treatment, We are particularly interested in the
past 24 months or since last placement summary. If more space is needed, attach additional page(s).

DATES PROVIDER Effectiveness (treatment goals met,
premature discharge before goals
met: problems encountered)

FROM TO

8 Has awareness of relapse triggers and ways to cope with MH breakthrough symptoms and/or substance use cravings

U Has some awareness of relapse triggers and ways to cope with MH breakthrough Symptoms and/or substance use cravings

9 Is unaware of relapse triggers and ways to cope with mental health breakthrough symptoms and/or substance use cravings

Q  Lacks skills to control impulses to use or harm self or others

Q Doesn’t follow medication regimen

O Requires assistance and/or support to actively manage relapse prevention

QD Tolerates organized daily activities or environmental changes

O Exhibits some tolerance for organized daily activities or environmentai changes

Q  Has little tolerance for organized daily activities or environmental changes

U Isunable to tolerate organized daily activities or environmental changes (e.g. activities or changes cause agitation, exacerbation of
Symptoms or withdrawal

3 Isunable to cope with stressful circumstances associated with work, school, family or social interaction

U Lack of resilience in response to stress
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Dimension 6: Recovery Environment:

RECOVERY ENVIRONMENT: (except “safe affordable housing of own choosing,” explain any item checked)

Resides in safe affordable housing of own choasing
Resides in safe affordable housing but is not of own choosing

Resides in licensed Adult Foster Care

Resides in unlicensed Adult Foster Care

Resides in a Group Home

Resides in Supervised Housing/Apartment

Living arrangement puts client at risk of harm

Living environment increases client’s stress

Unable to or only marginally able to support themselves in independent housing

Atrisk of eviction due to behavioral health problems

At risk of homelessness for other reasons (e.g. family refuses to allow a return to the home, community complaints...)
Homeless

There is serious disruption of family or social milieu due to iliness, death, severe conflict, etc.
Estranged from their family

Significant difficulties in interacting with family members

Lacks ability to provide food for self or dependent children

No transportation

No child care presenting a barrier to participate in treatment

Language barriers interfere with full participation in treatment

Resides in environment where easily victimized

D00 DUOODDUOOUOCO0DO0OC

INTERPERSONAL/SOCIAL FUNCTIONING (explain any item checked)
Has several close relationships or group affiliations

Has one or two close relationships or group affiliations

Lacks connections to supportive social systems in the community

Unable to form close friendships or group affiliations

Unable to interact appropriately with family and/or the community
Unable to engage in meaningful activities

Is socially isolated

Is in abusive relationship(s)

OoooDoQ oo




12-12-2011 ASAM CLINICAL PLACEMENT SUMMARY

D. Rating of Severity/Function: Using assessment protocols that address all six dimensions, assign a severity rating of 0 to 4
for each dimension that best reflects the client’s functioning and severity. Place a check mark or rating in the appropriate box for each
dimension. If applicable, for dimensions 4 and 5, rate mental health, substance use and physical health separately.

Risk Ratings Intensity of Service Need Dimensions
1. 2, 3. | 4|5 6

{0) No Risk or Stabie — Current risk absent. Any No immediate services needed.
acute or chronic problem mostly stabilized,

(1) Mild - Minimal, current difficulty or impairment. | Low intensity of services needed for this
Minimal or mild signs and symptoms, Any acute or | Dimension. Treatment strategies usuaily able
chronic problems soon able to be stabilized and to be delivered in outpatient settings
functioning restored with minimal difficulty.

(2) Moderate - Moderate difficulty or impairment, Moderate intensity of services, skilis training,
Moderate signs and symptoms. Some difficulty or supports needed for this level of risk,
coping or understanding, but able to function with Treatment strategies may require intensive
clinical and other support services and assistance, levels of outpatient care.

(3) Significant — Serious difficulties or impairment. | Moderately high intensity of services, skills

Substantial difficulty coping or understanding and training, or supports needed. May be in, or near
being able to function even with clinjcal support, imminent danger,

(4) Severe - Severe difficulty or impairment, High intensity of services, skills training, or
Serious, gross or persistent signs and Symptoms. supports needed. More immediate, urgent

Very poor ability to tolerate and cope with problems, | services may require inpatient or residential

Is in imminent danger. settings; or closely monitored case management

services at a frequency greater than daily.

(Section 4)

E. Placement Decisions: Indicate for each dimension, the least intensive level consistent with sound clinical judgment, based on
the client’s functioning/severity and service needs

ASAM PPC-2R Level of Detoxification Level | Dimen. 1

Service Intoxic/
Withdr.

Ambul. Detox without Extended On-Site Monitor. 1-D

Ambul. Detox with Extended On-Site Monitorin 1I-D

Clinically-Managed Residential Detoxification i11.2-D

Medically-Monitored CD Inpatient Detoxification | 11L.7-D

Medically-Managed Intensive Inpatient Detox. Iv-D

ASAM PPC-2R Level of Care for Other Level Dimen. 2 | Dimen, 3 | Dimen. 4 Dimen. 5 Dimen. 6
Treatment and Recovery Services * * Biomed. Emot/ Readiness | Relapse, Recovery

Behav/ to Continued Environ,
Cognitive | Change | Use/Problem

Early Intervention / Prevention

Outpatient Services / Individual

Outpatient with Care Manager

Intensive Outpatient Treatment (10p)

CCCP (ICM/TCM)

CCCP (ACT)

Partial Hospitalization (Partial)

Apartments /Clinically-Managed Low-Int. Res,
Svcs., Shelter

Clinically-Managed Med-Intens. Residential Svcs,
Clinically-Managed High-Intens. Residential Sves
Medically-Monitored Intens. Inpatient Treatment
Medically-Managed Intensive Inpatient Services :
Opioid Maintenance Therapy OMT |
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PLACEMENT SUMMARY

Level of Care/Service Indicated - Insert the ASAM Level number that offers the most appropriate level of
care/service that can provide the service intensity needed to address the client’s current
functioning/severity; and/or the service needed e.g., shelter, housing, vocational training, transportation,
language interpreter

Level of Care/Service Received - ASAM Level number -- [f the most appropriate level or service is not
utilized, insert the most appropriate placement or service available and circle the Reason for Difference
between Indicated and Received Level of Service

Reason for Difference - Circle only one number — 1. No difference; 2. Service not available; 3. Provider judgment; 4. Client
preference; 5. Client is on waiting list for appropriate level; 6. Service available, but no payment source; 7. Geographic
accessibility; 8. Family responsibility; 9. Language; 10. Court Ordered; 11. Not listed (Specify):

Anticipated Qutcome If Service Cannot Be Provided — Circle only one number - 1. Admitted to acute care setting; 2. Discharged
to street; 3. Continued stay in higher level of care; 4. Incarcerated; 5. Client will dropout until next crisis; 6. Probation Violation; 7.
Not listed (Specify):

Client Strengths that will help him/her be successful at this level of care:

Possible Barriers to treatment:

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: (Please use the space below for additional comments about placement for this client.)
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